ICPSR Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Annual Report, 1993-1994

Appendices

Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

ICPSR 4006

This document was previously available in paper and machine readable format only. It was converted to Portable Document Format (PDF), with minimal editing, on the date below as part of ICPSR's annual report conversion project. The document may not be completely searchable. No additional updating of this collection has been performed.



CPSR ANNUAL REPORT 1 9 9 3 - 1 9 9 4

APPENDICES

ICPSR Annual Report, 1993-1994

Appendices

Table of Contents

Appendix A: Archival Processing Activities	
Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1993–1994	3
Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1993–1994	5
Data Collections Released on Desktop Media, 1993–1994	12
Appendix B: Member Services Activities	
Volume of Data Distributed, 1993–1994	17
Appendix C: Educational Activities	
1993 Summer Program Courses and Instructors	27
Appendix D: Organization and Administration	
ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1993–1994	31
ICPSR Organizational Documents	37
Constitution	37
Bylaws	39
Memorandum of Agreement	44

APPENDIX A: ARCHIVAL PROCESSING ACTIVITIES

Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1993–1994

Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1993–1994

Data Collections Released on Desktop Media, 1993–1994

Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1993-1994

Data collections in this category have been checked, corrected if necessary, and formatted to ICPSR specifications. Also, the data may have been recoded and reorganized in consultation with the investigator to maximize their utilization and accessibility. A machine-readable codebook has often been produced; this codebook fully documents the data and may include descriptive statistics such as frequencies or means. SPSS and SAS data definition statements have been prepared for most of these collections, and many are available in multiple technical formats. Some collections in this category have codebooks available in printed form, a copy of which is supplied routinely to each Official Representative.

Austin, James, Michael Jones, and Melissa Bolyard

■ Evaluation of the Los Angeles County Regimented Inmate Diversion (RID) Program, 1990–1991 (ICPSR 6236) 1 file

Bachman, Jerald G., Lloyd D. Johnston, and Patrick M. O'Malley

- Monitoring the Future: A Continuing Study of the Lifestyles and Values of Youth, 1976–1992: Concatenated Core File (ICPSR 6227) 1 file
- Monitoring the Future: A Continuing Study of the Lifestyles and Values of Youth, 1992 (ICPSR 6133) 7 files

Berk, Richard A., and Lawrence W. Sherman

■ Specific Deterrent Effects of Arrest for Domestic Assault: Minneapolis, 1981–1982 (ICPSR 8250) 9 files

Black, Howard, Richard Berk, James Lily, Robert Owenbey, and Giannina Rikoski

 Evaluating Alternative Police Responses to Spouse Assault in Colorado Springs: An Enhanced Replication of the Minneapolis Experiment, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9982) 24 files

Chapper, Joy A., and Roger A. Hanson

 Alternative Procedures for Reducing Delays in Criminal Appeals: Sacramento, Springfield, and Rhode Island, 1983–1984 (ICPSR 9965) 2 files

Davis, Robert C., Barbara E. Smith, and Susan W. Hillenbrand

Reporting of Drug-Related Crimes: Resident and Police Perspectives in the United States, 1988–1990 (ICPSR 9925)
 2 files

Dunford, Franklyn W., David Huizinga, and Delbert S. Elliott

Domestic Violence Experience in Omaha, Nebraska, 1986–1987 (ICPSR 9481) 6 files

Ehrlich, Howard J., and Barbara E.K. Larcom

Prejudice and Violence in the American Workplace, 1988–1991: Survey of an Eastern Corporation (ICPSR 6135)
 1 file

Hepburn, John R., C. Wayne Johnston, and Scott Rogers

■ Evaluation of the Maricopa County [Arizona] Demand Reduction Program, 1989–1991 (ICPSR 9977) 5 files

Hirschel, J. David, et al.

■ Charlotte [North Carolina] Spouse Assault Replication Project, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 6114) 5 files

Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research and Carroll McKibbin

 Roster of United States Congressional Officeholders and Biographical Characteristics of Members of the United States Congress, 1789–1993: Merged Data (ICPSR 7803) 1 file

lackson, lames S.

■ National Black Election Panel Study, 1984 and 1988 (ICPSR 9954) 1 file

Keppel, Robert D., and Joseph G. Weis

Improving the Investigation of Homicide and the Apprehension Rate of Murderers in Washington State, 1981–1986 (ICPSR 6134) 3 files

Klein, Malcolm, and Cheryl Maxson

 Deinstitutionalization of Status Offenders: A Study of Intervention Practices for Youth in Seven Cities in the United States, 1987–1991 (ICPSR 6039) 5 files

MacKenzie, Doris L., James W. Shaw, and Voncile B. Gowdy

■ Shock Incarceration in Louisiana, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9926) 3 files

Miller, Warren E., Donald R. Kinder, Steven J. Rosenstone, and the National Election Studies

 American National Election Study, 1992: Pre- and Post-Election Survey [Enhanced With 1990 and 1991 Data] (ICPSR 6067) 2 releases: 2 files

Morgan, James N., Greg J. Duncan, Martha S. Hill, and James Lepkowski

Panel Study of Income Dynamics, 1968–1992 (ICPSR 7439) 10 files

Pate, Antony M., and Lorie E. Fridell

 Police Use of Force [United States]: Official Reports, Citizen Complaints, and Legal Consequences, 1991–1992 (ICPSR 6274) 1 file

Pretrial Services Resource Center

National Pretrial Reporting Program, 1990–1991 (ICPSR 6136) 1 file

Reif, Karlheinz, and Anna Melich

- Euro-Barometer 34.0: Perceptions of the European Community, and Employment Patterns and Child Rearing, October-November, 1990 (ICPSR 9576) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 35.0: Foreign Relations, the Common Agricultural Policy, and Environmental Concerns, Spring 1991 (ICPSR 9697) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 38.0: European Court of Justice, Passive Smoking, and Consumer Issues, September-October 1992 (ICPSR 6044) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 39.0: European Community Policies and Family Life, March–April 1993 (ICPSR 6195) 1 file

Schneider, Anne L., Zoann Snyder-Joy, and Laurie H. Ervin

 Implementation of Quantitative Decision Aids in the Oklahoma Probation and Parole System, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 9963) 1 file

Uchida, Craig D., Brian Forst, and Sampson O. Annan

 Modern Policing and the Control of Illegal Drugs: Testing New Strategies in Oakland, California, and Birmingham, Alabama, 1987-1989 (ICPSR 9962) 9 files

United States Department of Justice. Bureau of Justice Statistics

- Census of State and Federal Adult Correctional Facilities, 1990 (ICPSR 9908) 2 releases: 2 files
- Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System [United States]: Extract File, 1991 (ICPSR 6259) 1 file
- National Corrections Reporting Program, 1989 (ICPSR 9849) 3 files
- National Corrections Reporting Program, 1990 (ICPSR 6141) 3 files National Corrections Reporting Program, 1991 (ICPSR 6272) 3 files
- National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1986–1992 [Near-Term Data] (ICPSR 8864) 2 releases: 16 files
- National Judicial Reporting Program, 1990: [United States] (ICPSR 6038) 1 file
- National Prosecutors Survey, 1992 (ICPSR 6273) 1 file
- Offender Based Transaction Statistics (OBTS), 1989: Alabama, Alaska, California, Idaho, Kentucky, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Vermont, and Virginia (ICPSR 6190) 1 file
- Offender Based Transaction Statistics (OBTS), 1990: Alabama, Alaska, California, Idaho, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Vermont, and Virginia (ICPSR 6191) 1 file
- Recidivism of Felons on Probation, 1986–1989: [United States] (ICPSR 9574) 1 file
- Survey of Inmates of State Correctional Facilities, 1991: [United States] (ICPSR 6068) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Federal Bureau of Investigation

Uniform Crime Reporting Program Data: [United States] (ICPSR 9028) 3 releases: 11 files

United States Department of Justice. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

- Census of Public and Private Juvenile Detention, Correctional, and Shelter Facilities, 1986–1987: [United States] (ICPSR 8973) 1 file
- Census of Public and Private Juvenile Detention, Correctional, and Shelter Facilities, 1988–1989: [United States] (ICPSR 9445) 1 file
- Census of Public and Private Juvenile Detention, Correctional, and Shelter Facilities, 1990–1991: [United States] (ICPSR 9824) 2 files

United States Department of Justice. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, and United States Department of Justice. Bureau of Justice Statistics

Juvenile Detention and Correctional Facility Census, 1984–1985 (ICPSR 8495) 1 file

47 collections 153 files

Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1993–1994

These collections usually are made available in the format provided by the principal investigator, although ICPSR may have reformatted the data and/or documentation and may have added enhancements such as SAS and SPSS data definition statements. In most cases, data values are not changed. The documentation for these studies may be machine-readable or may be reproduced from the material originally received.

ABC News

- ABC News Bosnia Poll, May 1993 (ICPSR 6185) 1 file
- ABC News Clinton Economy Speech Poll, February 1993 (ICPSR 6180) 1 file
- ABC News Daily Tracking Poll, November 1992 (ICPSR 6025) 1 file
- ABC News Final Pre-Election Tracking Poll, October 1984 (ICPSR 8517) 1 file
- ABC News Hillary Clinton Poll, February 1993 (ICPSR 6183) 1 file
- ABC News Iraq Attack Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6176) 1 file
- ABC News Perot Reentry Poll, October 1992 (ICPSR 6021) 1 file
- ABC News Post Republican Convention Poll, August 1992 (ICPSR 6018) 1 file
- ABC News Presidential Debate Poll #1, October 1992 (ICPSR 6022) 1 file
- ABC News Presidential Debate Poll #2, October 1992 (ICPSR 6024) 1 file
 ABC News Population Convention College (ICPSR 6024) 1 file
- ABC News Republican Convention Quick Poll, August 1992 (ICPSR 6014) 1 file
- ABC News Vice-Presidential Debate Poll, October 1992 (ICPSR 6023) 1 file
- ABC News Waco/Koresh Poll, April 1993 (ICPSR 6184) 1 file

ABC News/NHK

■ ABC News/NHK Japan Poll, February 1993 (ICPSR 6182) 1 file

ABC News/Washington Post

- ABC News/Washington Post Baird Nomination Quick Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6177) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Election Poll #1, October 1992 (ICPSR 6019) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Election Poll #2, October 1992 (ICPSR 6020) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Gays in the Military Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6178) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, December 1991 (ICPSR 9890) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, January 1992 (ICPSR 9887) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6175) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, February 1993 (ICPSR 6181) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Republican Delegate Poll, August 1992 (ICPSR 6015) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post State of the Union Poll, February 1993 (ICPSR 6179) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post "World News Tonight" Health Care Poll, September 1993 (ICPSR 6284) 1 file

Andrews, Gary R.

 World Health Organization Collaborative Study on Social and Health Aspects of Aging in Fiji, Korea, Malaysia, and the Philippines, 1983–1985 (ICPSR 6057) 1 file

Bezilla, Robert

■ Teenage Attitudes and Behavior Concerning Tobacco, June–July 1992: [United States] (ICPSR 6252) 1 file

Blane, Howard T., Brenda A. Miller, and Kenneth E. Leonard

 Intra- and Intergenerational Aspects of Serious Domestic Violence and Alcohol and Drug Abuse in Buffalo, 1987 (ICPSR 9984) 3 files

Blau, Peter M., Otis Dudley Duncan, David L. Featherman, and Robert M. Hauser

Occupational Changes in a Generation, 1962 and 1973 (ICPSR 6162) 3 files

Buerger, Michael E.

Reexamining the Minneapolis Repeat Complaint Address Policing (RECAP) Experiment, 1986–1987 (ICPSR 6172) 16 files

Bumpass, Larry L., and James A. Sweet

National Survey of Families and Households, 1987–1988 (ICPSR 6041) 1 file

Byrne, James M., and Linda M. Kelly

 Evaluation of the Implementation and Impact of the Massachusetts Intensive Probation Supervision Project, 1984–1985 (ICPSR 9970) 2 files

Carver, Jay, Eric Wish, Douglas A. Smith, and Christina Polsenberg

 Criminal Histories and Criminal Justice Processing of Drug Use Forecasting (DUF) Sample Members in Washington, DC, 1989–1991 (ICPSR 6122) 2 files

CBS News

- CBS News Los Angeles Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6198) 1 file
- CBS News Los Angeles Poll, July 1993 (ICPSR 6207) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, July 1992 (ICPSR 6081) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, August 1992 (ICPSR 6084) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, September 1992 (ICPSR 6089) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #2, October 1992 (ICPSR 6094) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #1, March 1993 (ICPSR 6200) 1 file
- CBS News Monthly Poll #1, December 1993 (ICPSR 6330) 1 file
- CBS News Somalia Poll, December 1992 (ICPSR 6097) 1 file
- CBS News Special Recruitment Poll, January 1992 (ICPSR 6071) 1 file

CBS News/The New York Times

- CBS News/New York Times Florida State Survey, September 1992 (ICPSR 6088) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Illinois State Survey, October 1992 (ICPSR 6093) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, February 1992 (ICPSR 6073) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, February 1992 (ICPSR 6074) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, March 1992 (ICPSR 6075) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, April 1992 (ICPSR 6076) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, May 1992 (ICPSR 6077) 1 file CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, May 1992 (ICPSR 6078) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, June 1992 (ICPSR 6079) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, July 1992 (ICPSR 6080) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #3, July 1992 (ICPSR 6082) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, August 1992 (ICPSR 6083) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #3, August 1992 (ICPSR 6085) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, September 1992 (ICPSR 6086) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, October 1992 (ICPSR 6091) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #3, October 1992 (ICPSR 6095) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6197) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, March 1993 (ICPSR 6201) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #1, May 1993 (ICPSR 6202) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll #2, May 1993 (ICPSR 6204) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Monthly Poll and Call-Back, June 1993 (ICPSR 6205) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Ohio State Survey, September 1992 (ICPSR 6087) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Post-Debate Reaction Poll, October 1992 (ICPSR 6092) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Pre-Election Tracking Poll, October-November 1992 (ICPSR 6096) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times State of the Union Poll, January 1992 (ICPSR 6072) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times State of the Union Poll and Call-Back, February 1993 (ICPSR 6199) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Texas State Survey, October 1992 (ICPSR 6090) 1 file

CBS News/The New York Times/Tokyo Broadcasting System

CBS News/New York Times/Tokyo Broadcasting System Japan Poll, December 1992 (ICPSR 6098) 1 file

Center for Human Resource Research. The Ohio State University

■ National Longitudinal Surveys of Labor Market Experience, 1966–1991 (ICPSR 7610) 2 releases: 80 files

Centro de Investigaciones Sobre la Realidad Social (CIRES)

- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, October 1992: Ecology and Environment (ICPSR 6059) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, November 1992: Social Ethics (ICPSR 6058) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, December 1992: Mass Media (ICPSR 6060) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, January 1993: Supranational Identification (ICPSR 6266) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, February 1993: Family and the Use of Time (ICPSR 6268) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, March 1993: Attitudes Toward Immigrants (ICPSR 6267) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, October 1993: Daily Life (ICPSR 6301) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, November 1993: The Spanish Economic Crisis (ICPSR 6302) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, December 1993: Attitudes and Behavior Regarding Alcohol, Tobacco, and Drugs (ICPSR 6303) 1 file

Cohen, Jacqueline, and Richard Rosenfeld

Age-by-Race Specific Crime Rates, 1965–1985: [United States] (ICPSR 9589) 1 file

Cohen, Jacqueline, Sherwood Zimmerman, and Stephen King

 Techniques for Assessing the Accuracy of Recidivism Prediction Scales, 1960–1980: [Miami, Albuquerque, New York City, Alameda and Los Angeles Counties, and the State of California] (ICPSR 9988) 5 files

ARCHIVAL PROCESSING ACTIVITIES

Collins, James J., et al.

 Modeling the Crime Reduction Effects and Economic Benefits of Drug Abuse Treatment, 1979–1981: [United States] (ICPSR 9991) 4 files

Collins, James J., Susan L. Bailey, Charles D. Phillips, and Amy Craddock

Relationship of Mental Disorder to Violent Behavior in the United States, 1983–1984 (ICPSR 9973) 2 files

Curtin, Richard T.

■ Survey of Pension Providers, 1983: [United States] (ICPSR 9949) 1 file

Daniels, Sally, and Andrew Kully

 Assessment of a Program of Public Information on Health Care Reform, 1992–1993: [Wichita, Kansas, and Des Moines, Iowa] (ICPSR 6066) 1 file

Davis, James A., and Tom W. Smith

■ General Social Surveys, 1972–1993: [Cumulative File] (ICPSR 6217) 1 file

Decker, Scott H., and Richard Wright

 Exploring the House Burglar's Perspective: Observing and Interviewing Offenders in St. Louis, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 6148) 1 file

Downs, George W., and David M. Rocke

Validating Prison Security Classification Instruments in Hawaii, 1984–1985 (ICPSR 9921) 1 file

Dunworth, Terence, and Aaron Saiger

Drugs and Crime in Public Housing, 1986–1989: Los Angeles, Phoenix, and Washington, DC (ICPSR 6235) 6 files

Forschungsgruppe Wahlen (Mannheim)

■ German Election Study, 1990 (ICPSR 6189) 1 file

Forschungsgruppe Wahlen (Mannheim), EMNID (Bielefeld), and USUMA (East Berlin)

German Election Study, 1990 (Politbarometer East) (ICPSR 6193) 1 file

Forschungsgruppe Wahlen (Mannheim), M. Kaase, H.-D. Klingermann, M. Kuechler, F.-U. Pappi, and H.A. Semetko

■ German Election Panel Study, 1990 (ICPSR 6192) 1 file

Fox, James Alan

Arson Measurement, Analysis, and Prevention in Massachusetts, 1983–1985 (ICPSR 9972) 3 files

Geerken, Michael R., Alfred C. Miranne, and Mary Baldwin Kennedy

New Orleans Offender Study, 1973–1986 (ICPSR 6005) 5 files

Gelles, Richard J., and Murray A. Straus

■ Physical Violence in American Families, 1985 (ICPSR 9211) 1 file

Gottfredson, Stephen D., and Don M. Gottfredson

Criminal Violence and Incapacitation in California, 1962–1988 (ICPSR 9922) 1 file

Gregory, Robin, Sarah Lichtenstein, Donald Macgregor, Paul Slovic, and Jack Knetsch

Reference Point Effects in Eliciting Values of Environmental Goods, 1988-1990: [Oregon] (ICPSR 6042) 6 files

Harrell, Adele, Keiko Powers, and Yih-Ing Hser

Anticipating Community Drug Problems in Washington, DC, and Portland, Oregon, 1984–1990 (ICPSR 9924) 2 files

Hauser, Robert M.

Current Population Surveys: Uniform October Files, 1968–1990 (ICPSR 6126) 23 files

Hauser, Robert M., William H. Sewell, and J. Kenneth Little

 Wisconsin Longitudinal Study of Social and Psychological Factors in Aspiration and Attainment, 1957, 1964, 1975, and 1977 (ICPSR 6163) 1 file

Hirsch, Ronald L.

National Survey of Lawyers' Career Satisfaction, Wave I, 1984, and Wave II, 1990 (ICPSR 8975) 2 files

Horney, Julie, and Ineke Haen Marshall

Crime Commission Rates Among Incarcerated Felons in Nebraska, 1986–1990 (ICPSR 9916) 1 file

Kalleberg, Arne L., David Knoke, Peter V. Marsden, and Joe L. Spaeth

■ National Organizations Survey (NOS), 1991 (ICPSR 6240) 1 file

Kohfeld, Carol W., and John Sprague

■ Arrests As Communications to Criminals in St. Louis, 1970, 1972–1982 (ICPSR 9998) 14 files

Kohn, Melvin L., and Carmi Schooler

Survey of Men Employed in Civilian Occupations in the United States, 1964 (ICPSR 9242) 1 file

Koss, Mary P.

 Criminal Victimization Among Women in Cleveland, Ohio: Impact on Health Status and Medical Service Usage, 1986 (ICPSR 9920) 3 files

Levy, Jack S.

■ Great Power Wars, 1495–1815 (ICPSR 9955) 1 file

Lohr, Sharon L., and Mark R. Conaway

National Crime Surveys Longitudinal File, 1988–1989: [Selected Variables] (ICPSR 6063) 1 file

Manton, Kenneth G.

■ National Long-Term Care Survey, 1989 (ICPSR 9681) 7 files

McEwan, J.T., Barbara Manili, and Edward Connors

National Assessment Program Survey of Criminal Justice Personnel in the United States, 1986 (ICPSR 9923) 7 files

McLaughlin, Catherine G.

Small Business Benefits Study (SBBS), 1990: [Denver, Flint, Tampa, and Tucson] (ICPSR 6002) 1 file

Midlarsky, Manus I., and Kun Y. Park

■ Major-Minor Power Wars, 1495–1815 (ICPSR 6321) 1 file

Miller, Warren E., and the National Election Studies

American National Election Studies Cumulative Data File, 1952–1992 (ICPSR 8475) 1 file

Miller, Warren E., Donald R. Kinder, Steven J. Rosenstone, and the National Election Studies

- American National Election Study, 1990: Post-Election Survey (ICPSR 9548) 1 file
- American National Election Study: 1990–1991 Panel Study of the Political Consequences of War/1991 Pilot Study (ICPSR 9673) 1 file
- American National Election Study, 1990-1992: Full Panel Survey (ICPSR 6230) 2 releases: 2 files

National Center For Juvenile Justice

- Juvenile Court Statistics, 1987: [United States] (ICPSR 6119) 1 file
- Juvenile Court Statistics, 1988: [United States] (ICPSR 6120) 1 file
- Juvenile Court Statistics, 1989: [United States] (ICPSR 6121) 1 file

National Commission on Children

■ Survey of Parents and Children, 1990: [United States] (ICPSR 9595) 1 file

Nelson, Julie A.

■ Consumer Expenditure Surveys, 1980–1989: Interview Surveys, for Household-Level Analysis (ICPSR 9851) 54 files

Pennell, Susan, and Christine Curtis

■ Comparison of Drug Control Strategies in San Diego, 1989 (ICPSR 9990) 2 files

Pearson, Frank S.

■ Deterring Drug Use With Intensive Probation in New Jersey, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 9919) 1 file

Rauch, W. Hardy, et al., and the American Correctional Association

■ Management of Death Row Inmates, 1986–1987: [United States] (ICPSR 9917) 4 files

Reif, Karlheinz, and Anna Melich

- Euro-Barometer 34.1: Health Problems, Fall 1990 (ICPSR 9577) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 36.0: Regional Identity and Perceptions of the Third World, Fall 1991 (ICPSR 9771) 1 file

Rosenstone, Steven J., Donald R. Kinder, Warren E. Miller, and the National Election Studies

 American National Election Study: 1992–1993 Panel Study on Securing Electoral Success/1993 Pilot Study (ICPSR 6264) 1 file

Shover, Neal

 Perceptual Deterrence and Desistance From Crime: A Study of Repetitive Serious Property Offenders in Tennessee, 1987-1988 (ICPSR 9971) 1 file

Singer, J. David, and Melvin Small

Correlates of War Project: International and Civil War Data, 1816–1992 (ICPSR 9905) 2 files

Skogan, Wesley G.

Evaluation of the Impact of Innovative Policing Programs on Social Disorder in Seven Cities in the United States, 1983-1990 (ICPSR 6215) 1 file

Spaeth, Harold J.

United States Supreme Court Judicial Database, 1953–1992 Terms (ICPSR 9422) 1 file

Steadman, Henry J., Pamela Clark Robbins, and Carmen Cirincione

Mental Disorder and Violent Crime: A 20-Year Cohort Study in New York State, 1968–1988 (ICPSR 9978) 1 file

United States Arms Control and Disarmament Agency

World Military Expenditures and Arms Transfers, 1979–1989 (ICPSR 6065) 5 files

United States Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census

- American Housing Survey, 1985: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 9853) 11 files
- American Housing Survey, 1986: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 6129) 11 files
- American Housing Survey, 1987: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 6131) 11 files
- American Housing Survey, 1988: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 6130) 11 files
- American Housing Survey, 1989: MSA Core and Supplement File (ICPSR 6157) 11 files
- American Housing Survey, 1991: MSA Core File (ICPSR 6188) 11 files
- Census of Governments, 1987: Employment Statistics (ICPSR 6069) 3 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 1-Percent Sample (ICPSR 9951) 52 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 5-Percent Sample (ICPSR 9952) 51 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Subject Summary Tape File (SSTF) 1, The Foreign-Born Population in the United States (ICPSR 6211) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Subject Summary Tape File (SSTF) 2, Ancestry of the Population of the United States (ICPSR 6213) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 1B (ICPSR 9688) 2 releases: 4 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 1D (ICPSR 6011) 39 files Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 2A (ICPSR 9770) 2 releases: 4 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 2B (ICPSR 9848) 2 releases: 27 files Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 3A (ICPSR 9782) 2 releases: 14 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 3B (ICPSR 6116) 2 releases: 4 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 3C (ICPSR 6054) 2 releases: 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 3D (ICPSR 6012) 2 releases: 51 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 4A (ICPSR 6117) 24 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File S-5, Number of Workers by County of Residence by County of Work (ICPSR 6123) 1 file
- Consolidated Federal Funds Report (CFFR), Fiscal Year 1992 (ICPSR 6187) 4 files
- Current Population Survey: Annual Demographic File, 1993 (ICPSR 6244) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, June 1991: Immigration and Emigration (ICPSR 6056) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, October 1991: School Enrollment (ICPSR 6055) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, January 1992: Displaced Workers (ICPSR 6033) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, June 1992: Fertility and Birth Expectations (ICPSR 6186) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1990 Panel (ICPSR 9722) 2 releases: 8 files
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1991 Panel (ICPSR 9855) 2 releases: 4 files

United States Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census, and Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 1/10,000 Sample (ICPSR 6150) 1 file

United States Department Of Education. National Center For Education Statistics

National Education Longitudinal Study, 1988: First Follow-Up (1990) (ICPSR 9859) 2 files

United States Department of Health and Human Services. Agency for Health Care Policy and Research

- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Health Insurance Plans Survey Data, Private Insurance Benefit
 Database and Linkages to Household Survey Policyholders [Public Use Tape 16]
 (ICPSR 6168) 17 files
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Household Survey, Expenditures, Sources of Payment, and Population Data [Public Use Tape 18] (ICPSR 6247) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Institutional Population Component, Facility Use and Expenditure Data for Nursing and Personal Care Home Residents [Public Use Tape 17] (ICPSR 6158) 3 files
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Ambulatory Medical Visit Data [Public Use Tape 23.5P] (ICPSR 6221) 3 files
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Data
 on Home Health Care, Medical Equipment Purchases and Rentals, and Traditional Medicine [Public Use Tape
 23.2P] (ICPSR 6251) 3 files
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Dental Visit Data [Public Use Tape 23.3P] (ICPSR 6226) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Health Status Questionnaires and Access to Care Supplement [Public Use Tape 21P] (ICPSR 6169) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Hospital Stays Data [Public Use Tape 23.4P] (ICPSR 6220) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Population Characteristics [Public Use Tape 20P] (ICPSR 6231) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Survey of American Indians and Alaska Natives, Preliminary Prescribed Medicine Data [Public Use Tape 23.1P] (ICPSR 6225) 1 file

United States Department of Health and Human Services. Health Care Financing Administration

- Medicare Current Beneficiary Survey, Access to Care, Calendar Year 1992: [United States] (ICPSR 6332) 18 files
- Medicare Current Beneficiary Survey, Calendar Year 1991: [United States] (ICPSR 6118) 2 releases: 15 files

United States Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services Administration. Bureau of Health Professions

■ Bureau of Health Professions Area Resource File, 1940–1990: [United States] (ICPSR 9075) 1 file

United States Department of Health and Human Services. National Center for Health Statistics

- Hispanic Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, 1982–1984 (ICPSR 8535) 1 file
- Linked Birth/Infant Death Data, 1987 Birth Cohort: [United States] (ICPSR 6167) 2 files
- Mortality Detail Files, 1968–1991 (ICPSR 7632) 2 releases: 3 files
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1988 (ICPSR 6299) 1 file
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1989 (ICPSR 6257) 1 file
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1990 (ICPSR 6319) 1 file
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1991 (ICPSR 6320) 1 file
- National Ambulatory Medical Care Survey, 1990: Drug Mentions (ICPSR 6298) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1984: Supplement on Aging, Medicare Data, 1984–1991 (ICPSR 6256) 2 files
- National Health Interview Survey, 1984: Supplement on Aging, Multiple Cause of Death, 1984–1991 (ICPSR 9906)
 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: Assistive Devices Supplement (ICPSR 6139) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: Drug and Alcohol Use Supplement (ICPSR 6132) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: Health Promotion and Disease Prevention Supplement (ICPSR 6053) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: Pregnancy and Smoking Supplement (ICPSR 6138) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: Unintentional Injuries Supplement (ICPSR 6137) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1989 (ICPSR 6224) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1990 (ICPSR 6222) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1991 (ICPSR 6156) 1 file
- National Nursing Home Survey, 1969 (ICPSR 9780) 2 files
- National Nursing Home Survey Follow-Up: Wave III, 1990 (ICPSR 6142) 1 file

United States Department of Health and Human Services. National Institute of Mental Health

■ Epidemiologic Catchment Area Study, 1980–1985: [United States] (ICPSR 6153) 1 file

United States Department of Health and Human Services. National Institute on Drug Abuse

■ National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1991 (ICPSR 6128) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Bureau of Justice Statistics

- Murder Cases in 33 Large Urban Counties in the United States, 1988 (ICPSR 9907) 4 files
- National Justice Agency List, 1992 (ICPSR 6228) 1 file

United States Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics

- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1988: Interview Survey (ICPSR 9451) 5 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1991: Diary Survey (ICPSR 6210) 2 releases: 16 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1991: Interview Survey (ICPSR 6209) 20 files
- Consumer Price Index, 1913–1992 (ICPSR 8166) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Bureau of Prisons

■ Survey of Inmates of Federal Correctional Facilities, 1991 (ICPSR 6037) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Immigration and Naturalization Service

- Immigrants Admitted to the United States, 1989 (ICPSR 6161) 1 file
- Immigrants Admitted to the United States, 1990 (ICPSR 6164) 1 file
- Immigrants Admitted to the United States, 1991 (ICPSR 6165) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. National Institute of Justice

Drug Use Forecasting in 24 Cities in the United States, 1987-1992 (ICPSR 9477) 2 releases: 6 files

United States Department of Labor. United States Employment Service, and the North Carolina Occupational Analysis Field Center

Dictionary of Occupational Titles (DOT): Revised Fourth Edition, 1991 (ICPSR 6100) 12 files

United States House of Representives. Committee on House Administration. House Information Systems

- Geographic Distribution of Federal Funds, Fiscal Year 1981: [United States] (ICPSR 6043) 3 files
- Geographic Distribution of Federal Funds, Fiscal Year 1982: [United States] (ICPSR 6064) 3 files

United States Office of Personnel Management

■ Federal Employee Attitude Survey, September—October 1983 (ICPSR 6034) 1 file

United States Sentencing Commission

■ Monitoring of Federal Criminal Sentences, 1987–1992 (ICPSR 9317) 1 file

Van der Eijk, Cees, Erik Oppenhuis, and Hermann Schmitt

■ European Election Study, 1989 (ICPSR 6146) 39 files

Virag, Thomas, Brenda Cox, and J. Valley Rachal

■ National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1988 (ICPSR 9522) 1 file

Voter Research and Surveys

- Voter Research and Surveys General Election Exit Polls, 1992 (ICPSR 6102) 52 files
- Voter Research and Surveys New Jersey Gubernatorial Election Exit Polls, 1993 (ICPSR 6248) 1 file
- Voter Research and Surveys New York City Mayoral Election Exit Polls, 1993 (ICPSR 6249) 1 file

Washington Post

- Washington Post Capitol Hill Men in the Workplace Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6174) 1 file
- Washington Post Capitol Hill Women in the Workplace Poll, January 1993 (ICPSR 6173) 1 file
- Washington Post District of Columbia Stadium Poll, August 1992 (ICPSR 6017) 1 file
- Washington Post Health Care Poll, October 1993 (ICPSR 6287) 1 file
- Washington Post Oregon Packwood Poll, December 1992 (ICPSR 6027) 1 file
- Washington Post Republican Convention Poll, August 1992 (ICPSR 6016) 1 file

WCBS-TV News/The New York Times

■ WCBS-TV News/New York Times New York City Poll, May 1993 (ICPSR 6203) 1 file

Winterfield, Laura A.

Criminal Careers of Juveniles in New York City, 1977–1983 (ICPSR 9986) 2 files

World Bank. Debt and International Finance Division

World Debt Tables, 1970–1991 (ICPSR 8313) 1 file

World Bank. International Economics Department

■ World Tables of Economic and Social Indicators, 1950–1992 (ICPSR 6159) 1 file

248 collections 1,016 files

Data Collections Released on Desktop Media, 1993-1994

FTP

During 1993–1994, ICPSR began implementing "ICPSR Online," a project designed to make essentially all of ICPSR's collection of over 3,000 studies available for FTP retrieval. By the end of the fiscal year, 355 studies (1,494 discrete files) were available through the FTP component of CDNet.

Diskette

Alternative Procedures for Reducing Delays in Criminal Appeals: Sacramento, Springfield, and Rhode Island, 1983–1984 (ICPSR 9965). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00073]

American National Election Study, 1990–1992: Full Panel Survey (ICPSR 6230). Logical record length data, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00148–D00149]

American National Election Study: Pooled Senate Election Study, 1988, 1990, 1992 [3rd release] (ICPSR 9580). Documentation files in WordPerfect 5.1 format [D00069]

American National Election Study, 1992: Pre- and Post-Election Survey [Enhanced With 1990 and 1991 Data] (ICPSR 6067). Logical record length data, documentation, frequencies addendum, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00150–D00152]

American National Election Study: 1992–1993 Panel Study on Securing Electoral Success/1993 Pilot Study (ICPSR 6264). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements, errata [D00153]

Anticipating Community Drug Problems in Washington, DC, and Portland, Oregon, 1984–1990 (ICPSR 9924). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00108].

Bibliographic Citations for All Data Collections Released by ICPSR, 1962–September 30, 1993 (ICPSR 4001). ASCII text in three parts, and self-extracting file containing all citations [D00100]

Census of Population and Housing 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 1/10,000 Sample (ICPSR 6150). Documentation, database dictionary, geographic equivalency files, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00109–D00110]

Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 1-Percent Sample (ICPSR 9951). Documentation, database dictionary, geographic equivalency file, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00083]

Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 5-Percent Sample (ICPSR 9952). Documentation, database dictionary, geographic equivalency file, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00087]

Census of State and Federal Adult Correctional Facilities, 1990 (ICPSR 9908). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00099]

Charlotte [North Carolina] Spouse Assault Replication Project, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 6114). Logical record length data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00081]

Correlates of War Project: International and Civil War Data, 1816–1992 (ICPSR 9905). Card image data, SPSS export files, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00142]

Crime Commission Rates Among Incarcerated Felons in Nebraska, 1986–1990 (ICPSR 9916). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00085]

Criminal Careers of Juveniles in New York City, 1977–1983 (ICPSR 9986). Logical record length data, documentation [D00111]

Criminal Victimization Among Women in Cleveland, Ohio: Impact on Health Status and Medical Service Usage, 1986 (ICPSR 9920). Logical record length data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00082]

Criminal Violence and Incapacitation in California, 1962–1988 (ICPSR 9922). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00067]

Deterring Drug Use With Intensive Probation in New Jersey, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 9919). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00074]

Domestic Violence Experience in Omaha, Nebraska, 1986–1987 (ICPSR 9481). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00132]

Drug Use Forecasting in 24 Cities in the United States, 1987–1992 (ICPSR 9477). Logical record length and card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00101–D00107, D00140–D00141]

Employment and Expenditure for the Criminal Justice System [United States]: Extract File, 1990 (ICPSR 6006). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00122]

Euro-Barometer 31: European Elections, 1989: Pre-Election Survey, March-April 1989 (ICPSR 9322). Card image data, documentation, SPSS data definition statements [D00138-D00139]

Euro-Barometer 31A: European Elections, 1989: Post-Election Survey, June–July 1989 (ICPSR 9360). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00071–D00072]

Evaluating Alternative Police Responses to Spouse Assault in Colorado Springs: An Enhanced Replication of the Minneapolis Experiment, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9982). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00125–D00126]

Evaluation of the Impact of Innovative Policing Programs on Social Disorder in Seven Cities in the United States, 1983–1990 (ICPSR 6215). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00134]

Evaluation of the Maricopa County [Arizona] Demand Reduction Program, 1989–1991 (ICPSR 9977). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00129–D00130]

Exploring the House Burglar's Perspective: Observing and Interviewing Offenders in St. Louis, 1989–1991 (ICPSR 6148). ASCII text, user guide, documentation [D00112–D00113]

Great Power Wars, 1495–1815 (ICPSR 9955). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00154]

ICPSR Summer Program in Quantitative Methods, 1993: Bibliography (ICPSR 4002). Machine-readable text file [D00133]

Impact of the Court Process on Sexually Abused Children in North Carolina, 1983–1986 (ICPSR 9985). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00062]

Implementation of Quantitative Decision Aids in the Oklahoma Probation and Parole System, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 9963). Logical record length data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00080]

Improving the Investigation of Homicide and the Apprehension Rate of Murderers in Washington State, 1981–1986 (ICPSR 6134). Logical record length data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00121]

Major-Minor Power Wars, 1495–1815 (ICPSR 6321). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00155]

Management of Death Row Inmates, 1986–1987: [United States] (ICPSR 9917). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00066]

Mental Disorder and Violent Crime: A 20-Year Cohort Study in New York State, 1968–1988 (ICPSR 9978). Card image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00123]

Modern Policing and the Control of Illegal Drugs: Testing New Strategies in Oakland, California, and Birmingham, Alabama, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9962). Logical record length data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00119]

National Assessment Program Survey of Criminal Justice Personnel in the United States, 1986 (ICPSR 9923). Logical record length data, documentation [D00070]

National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1986–1992 [Near-Term Data] (ICPSR 8864). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00128]

National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1986–1992 [Near-Term Data] [Incident-Level Data] [6th ICPSR Edition] (ICPSR 8864). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00127]

National Judicial Reporting Program, 1990: [United States] (ICPSR 6038). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00144–D00147]

National Prosecutors Survey, 1992 (ICPSR 6273). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00131]

New Orleans Offender Study, 1973–1986 (ICPSR 6005). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00090–D00098]

Police Use of Force [United States]: Official Reports, Citizen Complaints, and Legal Consequences, 1991–1992 (ICPSR 6274). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00143]

Prejudice and Violence in the American Workplace, 1988–1991: Survey of an Eastern Corporation (ICPSR 6135). Logical record length data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00118]

Reexamining the Minneapolis Repeat Complaint Address Policing (RECAP) Experiment, 1986–1987 (ICPSR 6172). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00135–D00136]

Relationship of Mental Disorder to Violent Behavior in the United States, 1983–1984 (ICPSR 9973). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00084]

Reporting of Drug-Related Crimes: Resident and Police Perspectives in the United States, 1988–1990 (ICPSR 9925). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00079]

SETUPS: Voting Behavior: The 1992 Election (ICPSR 6125). Logical record length data, SPSS export file, frequencies, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00086]

Shock Incarceration in Louisiana, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9926). Logical record length data, card image data, user guide, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00089]

Specific Deterrent Effects of Arrest for Domestic Assault: Minneapolis, 1981–1982 (ICPSR 8250). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00120]

Validating Prison Security Classification Instruments in Hawaii, 1984–1985 (ICPSR 9921). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [D00088]

51 collections on diskette

CD-ROM

Crime Victimization Data, 1973–1991 (ICPSR 6261) (4 collections). Logical record length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [CD0007]. Specific collections include:

National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1973-1983 (ICPSR 7635)

National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1979–1987 [Revised Questionnaire] (ICPSR 8608)

National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1986–1991 [Near-Term Data Through Calendar Year 1991] (ICPSR 8864)

National Crime Surveys: National Sample of Rape Victims, 1973-1982 (ICPSR 8625)

Panel Study of Income Dynamics, 1968–1989 (Family-Individual Data, Waves I–XXII, Respondents and Non-Respondents) (ICPSR 7439). OSIRIS data, SAS and SPSS data definition statements [CD00006]

5 collections on 2 CD-ROMs

APPENDIX B: USER SUPPORT ACTIVITIES

Volume of Data Distributed, 1993-1994

Volume of Data Distributed, 1993–1994

The table on the following pages tabulates all requests for data and related services during fiscal year 1993–1994. Note that a zero in the last column indicates that textual material was supplied. Also, an "M" in the first column of the table indicates a member institution, while "NM" in that column indicates a nonmember.

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	ABT Associates, Inc.	135	344.32
1 4/41	Cambridge, Massachusetts	133	377.32
NM	Academic Book Center, Inc.	3	0
1 1/11	Portland, Oregon	3	· ·
NM	Actuarial Research Corporation	2	72.88
	Columbia, Maryland	-	72.00
М	University of Akron	15 <i>7</i>	4788.56
M	University of Alabama at Birmingham	34	1017.68
M	University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa	246	1084.96
M	Alfred University	2	16.16
	American Bindery East	3	0
	Colonial Heights, Virginia	•	Ü
M	American University	364	13604.80
M	Appalachian State University	590	3505.28
M	Arizona State University	401	7550.56
M	University of Arizona	1124	8500.48
M	Arkansas State University	54	245.36
M	University of Arkansas at Fayetteville	14	547.76
M	Associated Colleges of the Midwest	352	9633.84
M	Auburn University at Auburn	111	7180.88
NM	Augusta College Augusta, Georgia	6	4.56
NM	Augustana College Sioux Falls, South Dakota	1	1.04
М	Australian Consortium for Social and Political R	esearch, Inc. 83	4185.92
	Baker & Taylor Books	5	4165.52
	Momence, Illinois		U
M	Bard College	3	348.72
M	Bates College	51	1375.84
NM	Baylor University	1	4.72
	Waco, Texas		
NM	University of Bayreuth	1	.01
	Eckersdorf, Germany	_	
NM	Beverly Books, Inc.	1	0
	Linden, New Jersey	_	
NM	Blackwell North America, Inc.	8	0
	Blackwell, New Jersey	_	
NM	The Book House, Inc.	2	0
	Jonesville, Michigan		
M	Boston College	254	5537.44
M	Bowling Green State University	147	5850.80
NM	Bradford College	1	1.04
	Bradford, Massachusetts		
NM	Bradley University	10	100.72
	Peoria, Illinois		
M	Brandeis University	91	4352.32
M	Brazilian National Membership	1	0
M	Brigham Young University	113	830.32
M	University of British Columbia	12	1686.48
M	The Brookings Institution	94	2400.80
M	Brown University	382	9962.00
NM	Trenton Brown Waco, Texas	1	0

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
M	Bryant College	4	_
***	Smithfield, Rhode Island	1	0
М	California State University San Marcos	1	104
••••	San Marcos, California	1	1.04
1	California State University Federation	355	6653.00
i	University of California at Berkeley		6653.92
i	University of California at Davis	761 530	9126.80
i	University of California at Irvine	538	2928.56
i	University of California at Los Angeles	301	7559.92
1	University of California at Riverside	699 535	31074.40
1	University of California at San Diego	525	3162.80
i	University of California at Santa Barbara	91	5146.08
i	University of California at Santa Barbara University of California at Santa Cruz	371	14977.60
i	Calvin College	69	996.32
i		. 10	10.24
	Canadian Council of Prairie and Pacific University Libr		3594.56
141	Canisius College	4	1.28
1	Buffalo, New York	- 45	_
۱ ا	Carnegie-Mellon University	643	6041.84
	Case Western Reserve University	37	1966.08
1	Catholic University of America	17	14.64
1	Central Michigan University	3	15.28
ıM	Chadwyck-Healey, Inc.	1	0
	Alexandria, Virginia		
١	Chicago Academy of Sciences	6	25.20
١	University of Chicago	1,424	47198 . 16
	Christopher Newport University	6	1257.20
	CIESIN	1 <i>7</i> 6	2648.48
	University of Cincinnati	181	6622.24
	City University of New York Federation	372	24321.28
	Claremont Colleges	265	664.96
i	Clemson University	378	3974.24
١	Cleveland State University	185	3635.28
١	Colgate University	212	3069.60
ı	University of Colorado at Boulder	200	5994.64
l	University of Colorado at Denver	4	557.52
١	Columbia University	525	9426.40
M	Concordia University	15	29.28
	Montreal, Quebec, Ćanada	.5	23.20
M	Congressional Budget Office	6	1410.08
	Washington, D.C.	o o	1410.06
	University of Connecticut	390	2052 56
	Cornell Federation	488	2852.56
	Council for International Exchange of Scholars	1	10611.92
	Washington, D.C.	ı	0
м	Coutts Library Services, Inc.	1	^
	Niagara Falls, New York	1	0
	Creighton University	EO	FF0 40
	Dartmouth College	59 200	550.40
	Davidson College	209	4458.56
	Davidson College Dawson France	5	24.08
	Palaiseau Cedex, France	2	0
	Defense Medical College	•	=
		2	7.12
	Saitama, Japan University of Delaware	4	
	University of Delaware	166	1696.16
	DePaul University	56	472.48
	Drake University Dravel University	12	403.28
	Drexel University	1	0
	Philadelphia, Pennsylvania		
	Duke University	624	7472.32
	Duquesne University Dutch National Membership	3 <i>7</i> 169	1532.56

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
М	East Carolina University	109	2480.40
	East Texas State University	4	1.28
	Commerce, Texas	·	1.20
M	Eastern Illinois University	5	2.40
	Charleston, Illinois		
М	Eastern Michigan University	1 <i>7</i>	724.00
NM	Emery-Pratt Company	1	0
	Owosso, Michigan		
M	Emory University	832	7210 .8 0
M	European University Institute	4	2.48
M	Evidence Based Research, Inc.	2	.01
	Vienna, Virginia		
NM	Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago	1	0
	Chicago, Illinois		
M	Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia	1	0
	Philadelphia, Pennsylvania		
М	Florida Consortium for Political Research	1,430	9861.68
M	Fordham University	74	1034.08
M	Franklin and Marshall College	8	9.12
М	French National Membership	40	100.16
M	Frostburg State University	5	2.40
	Frostburg, Maryland		
M	Furman University	10	83.36
MM	GAK Pensionfunds	1	.72
	Amsterdam, The Netherlands		
M	George Mason University	114	2710.96
М	George Washington University	85	411.28
М	Georgetown University	352	2284.32
М	Georgia Southern University	19	216.72
М	Georgia State University	229	8888.32
М	University of Georgia	402	6829.60
М	German National Federation	206	1097.44
М	Gettysburg College	63	1610.32
M	Goucher College	1	1.04
	Baltimore, Maryland		
NM	Grand Valley State University	1	0
	Allendale, Michigan		· ·
М	University of Guelph	13	2262.96
	Hannslik & Wegner International Bookstore	1	0
	Westport, Connecticut	-	ŭ
NM	Hanover College	4	39.52
	Hanover, Indiana	•	33.32
М	University of Hartford	91	1173.20
ν.	Hartwick College	10	15.52
Ň	Harvard University	955	13192.16
M	University of Hawaii at Manoa	23	399.76
	Henderson State University	1	4.80
	Arkadelphia, Arkansas	•	7.00
M	Hollins College	1	1.04
	Roanoke, Virginia	·	1.07
М	University of Houston	294	4448.08
	University of Idaho	5	2.40
	Moscow, Idaho	-	۵.70
М	Illinois State University at Normal	148	2990.64
M	University of Illinois at Chicago	446	12720.16
Й	University of Illinois at Urbana	138	7962.48
	Indiana State University	3	7 302.40
-	Terra Haute, Indiana	3	U
М	Indiana University	798	20507 12
	Indiana University of Pennsylvania	1	38587.12 348.72
•	Indiana, Pennsylvania	1	346./2

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	Innovative Emergency Management Baton Rouge, Louisiana	6	46.32
М	Institute for European and American Studies, Acad	lemia Sinica 95	3563.06
M	Iowa State University	390	2562.96 11820.64
M	University of Iowa	414	11820.64
M	Israeli National Membership	25	8400.88
М	James Madison University	228	4607.28
М	Johns Hopkins University	117	680.64 6795,52
М	Kansas State University	99	3228.08
И	University of Kansas	444	1814.80
И	Keio University	6	77.28
М	Kent State University	82	765.52
M	University of Kentucky	420	8319.68
M	KNBC-TV Los Angeles	3	
	Burbank, California	3	.56
И	Kobe University	58	330.08
	KPMG Peat Marwick	32	320.08
•	Washington, D.C.	32	281.68
M	Kutztown University	1	1.04
	Kutztown, Pennsylvania	'	1.04
И	Kyoto University of Foreign Studies	A	140.40
	Lafayette College	4 9	148.48
	Universite Laval	_	155.04
Ä	Lehigh University	25 1	185.04
	Lewis and Clark College	1 1	4.64
	Albany, Oregon	ı	1.04
	Library of Congress	11.2	157.00
JAA	Richard T. Lindholm	112	157.28
4171	Eugene, Oregon	1	.72
ML	Linfield College	4	
	McMinnville, Oregon	1	1.04
	Longwood College	4	10.22
****	Farmville, Virginia	1	10.32
1	Louisiana State University	200	21122.00
	University of Louisville	390 605	21132.80
	Loyola Marymount University	695	4046.56
	Loyola University of Chicago	2	7.12
		196	11335.68
	Marquette University	158	7460.40
4	University of Maryland at Baltimore County	92	1614.80
1	University of Maryland at College Park	716	12484.56
	Massachusetts Federation	463	7297.20
	Massachusetts Institute of Technology Mathematica Policy Research, Inc.	989	29273.12
		1	0
	Washington, D.C.	_	
	Mathtech, Inc. Princeton, New Jersey	2	1133.36
		•	
	McGill University	84	2774.16
	McMaster University Memphis State Llabyersity	1	0
	Memphis State University Merrimack College	162	3099.68
	Miami University	4	1.28
		121	2226.64
	Michigan State University University of Michigan	167	7068.48
	Oniversity of Michigan Middlebury College	832	38908.72
		1	222.24
	Midwest Library Service	1	0
	Bridgeton, Missouri Milken Institute for Joh and Capital Formation	• • •	
M	Milken Institute for Job and Capital Formation	149	5451.44
	Millsaps College Jackson, Mississippi	1	1.04
١ أ	Minnesota State University Federation	•	
	rinnesola state University redefation	166	10816.88

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
MM	University of Minnesota at Duluth Duluth, Minnesota	1	0
М	University of Minnesota at Twin Cities	673	5881.44
À	Mississippi State University	74	2822.48
À	University of Mississippi	68	150.56
Л	University of Missouri at Columbia	298	4951.68
Л	University of Missouri at St. Louis	94	5717.04
M	Montana State University Bozeman, Montana	4	7.60
1	University of Montreal	55	866.64
	Murray State University	1	1.04
	Murray, Kentucky	••	440.00
M JAA	Nassau Community College National Bureau of Economic Research	20	112.80
	Cambridge, Massachusetts	3	0
1M	National Women's Political Caucus Washington, D.C.	1	4.48
1	University of Nebraska at Lincoln	108	4904.24
Л	University of Nevada at Las Vegas	14	203.04
4	University of Nevada at Reno	6	1308.00
1	University of New Hampshire	41	1010.08
M	New Mexico Highlands University Las Vegas, New Mexico	1	0
1	New Mexico State University	53	1482.64
À	University of New Mexico	162	2032.72
1	University of New Orleans	28	561.36
À	New School for Social Research	15	880.24
1	New York University	482	8900.80
1	North Carolina Central University	37	2763.92
4	North Carolina State University	145	8179.76
1	University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill	696	8403.12
1	University of North Carolina at Charlotte	88	295.60
4	University of North Carolina at Greensboro	103	1623.12
1	University of North Texas	702	11781.76
1	Northeastern University	505	8186.24
1	Northern Arizona University	15	219.60
1	Northern Illinois University	327	11180.32
1	Northwestern University	422	11923.84
1	Norwegian Social Science Data Services	54	316.24
1	University of Notre Dame	248	1852.88
1	Oberlin College	16	919.36
M	Ohio Northern University Ada, Ohio	1	0
1	Ohio State University	638	18502.96
1	Ohio University	12	1853.20
<i>i</i>	Oklahoma State University	14	85.68
Ä	University of Oklahoma	319	1975.60
Ä	Old Dominion University	41	4307.84
Ä	Oregon State University	154	1568.16
1	University of Oregon	278	5200.72
1	Pace University	1	5200.72 0
1	Pennsylvania State University	802	29655.60
i	Philadelphia Federation	368	11771.68
Ä	University of Pittsburgh	532	5147.84
	The Plain Dealer	1	0
	Cleveland, Ohio		
4141	Point Loma Nazarene College	5	2.40
	San Diego, California		
Л	Portland State University	97	1586.72

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	Public/Private Ventures	1	0
	Philadelphia, Pennsylvania	•	U
М	University of Puget Sound	4	25.44
M	Purdue University	494	8552.64
M	The RAND Corporation	359	
	Randolph-Macon College	1	34372.88
	Ashland, Virginia	'	1.04
И	Reed College	45	425.44
	Research Triangle Institute		435.44
***	Research Triangle Park, North Carolina	1	0
А	University of Rhode Island	400	22252
	Rhodes College	499	22053.84
4141	Memphis, Tennessee	•	4.72
И		0.0	
N	Rice University	96	983.76
	University of Richmond	61	4286.08
AIVI	Rider College	4	1.28
4	Lawrenceville, New Jersey		
	The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation	35	614.56
M M	University of Rochester	387	11140.80
MM	Rockwell International	1	2.56
	Newport Beach, California		
M	Russell Sage College	1	0
	Troy, New York		
	Rutgers—The State University	416	12940.88
	RRČ, Inc.	4	18.24
	Bryan, Texas		
И	Southern Illinois University at Carbondale	8	150.80
	Southern Illinois University at Edwardsville	15	282.56
	Saint Anselm College	2	0
	College of St. Benedict	ī	1.04
	St. Joseph, Minnesota	•	1.04
	St. Edward's University	2	1.36
	Austin, Texas	2	1.50
	Sam Houston State University	7	156.72
	San Diego State University	9	133.44
	Sangamon State University	8	
	Santa Clara University	208	8.40
	Sarah Lawrence College		10962.08
4141	Proposillo Nove York	2	0
	Bronxville, New York	4	-
	Simon Fraser University	1	0
4	Sonoma State University	125	202.32
	University of South Alabama	45	219.68
4	University of South Carolina	413	8310.64
	University of the South	4	1.28
	Sewanee, Tennessee		
	Southeastern Louisiana University	18	106.40
	University of Southern California	407	6737.60
1	Southern University — Baton Rouge	1	0
1	Southwestern University	3	14.00
1	Stanford University	413	20361.60
	Stephen F. Austin Śtate University	1	0
	Nacogdoches, Texas		
	University of Stirling	1	.08
	Stirling, Scotland	•	
M	Stockton State College	1	1.04
	Edison, New Jersey	•	1.04
M	Susquehanna University	1	0
	Selinsgrove, Pennsylvania	•	U
	Swarthmore College	2	.48
1		A	.40
	Swedish National Membership	24	323.84

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
м	Syracuse University	126	2613.84
M	State University of New York at Albany	652	23826.88
M	State University of New York at Binghamton	370	9176.48
М	State University of New York at Buffalo	356	8411.04
M	State University of New York, College at Buffalo	1	0
	State University of New York, College at Cortland Cortland, New York	i	o 0
M	State University of New York, College at New Paltz	3	1.44
M	State University of New York at Stony Brook	183	3502.88
M	Taylor University	1	1.04
M	Temple University	282	10580.72
NM	Tennessee State University	3	89.28
	Nashville, Tennessee		
M	University of Tennessee at Knoxville	82	1672.96
M	Texas A&M University	417	1856.48
M	Texas Tech University	124	680.88
M	University of Texas at Arlington	39	1172.96
М	University of Texas at Austin	1140	10345.36
M	University of Texas at Dallas	71	4069.52
М	University of Texas, Medical Branch at Galveston	243	180.00
M	University of Texas at San Antonio	18	1161.60
	Thiel College	3	1.52
	Greenville, Pennsylvania	•	1.32
М	University of Toledo	34	1777.68
M	University of Toronto	219	1772.64
	Towson State University	5	1.84
-	Towson, Maryland	J	1.04
NM	Trinity College	1	0
	Washington, D.C.	•	Ū
NM	Trinity University	1	.24
	San Antonio, Texas	'	.24
M	Tufts University	271	2280.88
	Tulane University	175	1997.04
	University of Tulsa	1,1	1.04
	Tulsa, Oklahoma	•	1.04
NM	Tuskegee University	1	0
	Tuskegee, Alabama	•	0
М	Union College	1	01
	United Kingdom National Membership		.01
NM	United States Army Concepts Analysis Agency	158	4661.04
	Bethesda, Maryland	2	.40
NM	United States Congress	1	•
1171	Washington, D.C.	1	0
NM	United States Department of Agriculture	15	20.72
*1 * 1	Washington, D.C.	15	20.72
NM	United States Department of Defense	1 5	40.54
71 7 8		15	18.56
NA/	Washington, D.C.	1 =	
4141	United States Department of Health and Human Services Washington, D.C.	15	20.08
	Washington, D.C.	_	
AIAI	United States Department of Treasury	1	0
	Washington, D.C.	_	
M	Ursinus College	7	46.08
M	Utah State University	151	96.80
M	University of Utah	156	3415.36
	Vanderbilt University	490	12200.48
M	Vassar College	2	49.76
M	University of Vermont	54	306.88
M	Virginia Commonwealth University	311	11425.12
M	Virginia Federation	1,044	21506.16
M	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	185	9211.52
M	Wake Forest University		

Recipient		Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	Wartburg College	4	1.20
	Waverly, Iowa	4	1.28
М	Washington and Lee University	1	1.04
NM	The Washington Post	2	16.96
	Washington, D.C.	2	10.50
М	Washington State University	258	1290.16
М	Washington University	378	4503.44
M	University of Washington	154	2646.48
М	Wayne State University	141	4732,32
	William E. Wecker Associates, Inc.	45	59.36
	Novato, California	45	33.30
М	Wellesley College	8	200.72
M	Wesleyan University	76	1527.36
M	West Virginia University	372	15990.08
	Western Illinois University	1	1.04
	Macomb, Illinois	•	1.04
М	Western Kentucky University	6	2028.08
M	Western Michigan University	269	2834.88
M	University of Western Ontario	209	450.72
M	Western Washington University	21	1279.68
M	Wheaton College	8	
	Wheaton College	1	308.72 1.04
	Norton, Massachusetts	•	1.04
М	Wichita State University	194	5307.04
	Widener University	1	0
	Chester, Pennsylvania	•	U
NM	Wilkes University	2	7.12
	Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania	<u> -</u>	7.12
NM	Mr. Guido Willems	1	.40
	Aachen, Germany	•	0
М	Williams College	14	94.72
M	University of Wisconsin at Eau Claire	27	302.40
M	University of Wisconsin at Madison	836	14080.16
M	University of Wisconsin at Milwaukee	180	2204.72
	Wittenberg University	85	71.52
	Wright State University	8	132.24
	Dayton, Ohio	0	132.24
М	University of Wyoming	53	4133.68
	Yale Federation	503	7437.84
-	Yankee Book Peddler, Inc.	2	/43/.04 0
	Contoocook, New Hampshire	4	U

Totals:

Total Number of Institutions:354Total Number of Datasets:55,729Total Number of Megabytes:1,256,788.73

APPENDIX C: EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

1993 Summer Program Courses and Instructors

1993 Summer Program Courses and Instructors

First Session: June 28-July 23

Lectures

BASIC MATHEMATICS ■ Stephen Bringardner, Mathematics, Washtenaw Community College
MATHEMATICS FOR SOCIAL SCIENTISTS ■ James Dowdy, Mathematics, West Virginia University
INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTING ■ Michael Hawthorne, Political Science, Pembroke State University
NONLINEAR SYSTEMS I: MODEL SPECIFICATION ■ Courtney Brown, Political Science, Emory University

Workshops

INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICS AND DATA ANALYSIS I ■ Jack Wilson, Mathematics, University of North Carolina, Asheville

INTRODUCTION TO REGRESSION ANALYSIS

Saundra Schneider, Political Science, University of South Carolina

REGRESSION ANALYSIS ■ Timothy McDaniel, School of Science, Buena Vista College

REGRESSION ANALYSIS
Geoffrey Fong, Psychology, University of Waterloo

MULTIVARIATE STATISTICAL METHODS ■ Ulf Bockenholt, Psychology, University of Illinois

SCALING AND DIMENSIONAL ANALYSIS William Jacoby, Political Science, University of South Carolina

QUANTITATIVE HISTORICAL ANALYSIS Margo Anderson, History, University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee

MATHEMATICAL MODELS: GAME THEORY . James Morrow, Hoover Institution

LATINO RESEARCH ISSUES Anna Santiago, Sociology, Indiana University, and Katherine Baisden, Center for Chicano Research, Stanford University

GENERALIZED LINEAR MODELS (MAXIMUM LIKELIHOOD ESTIMATION)

Gary King, Harvard University; Nancy Burns, University of Michigan; Neal Beck, University of California, San Diego; and Charles Franklin, Political Science, University of Wisconsin

UTILIZATION OF DATA RESOURCES FROM THE 1990 CENSUS (June 7–11) ■ Erik Austin, ICPSR; Rodney Ganey, University of Notre Dame; Carmen Campbell, Vincent Kountz, and Joe Kogelmann, Bureau of Census; William Frey, W. R. Farley, and Lisa Neidert, University of Michigan

NATIONAL LONG-TERM CARE SURVEYS (June 14–18) Larry Corder and staff, Center for Demographic Studies, Duke University

LOGIT AND LOG-LINEAR MODELS (June 21–25) ■ Michael Berbaum, Institute for Social Science Research, University of Alabama

ITEM RESPONSE THEORY AND MEASUREMENT (July 5–9) Terry Ackerman, Educational Psychology, University of Illinois

NETWORK ANALYSIS (July 12–16)
Stanley Wasserman, Psychology, University of Illinois

CRIMINAL JUSTICE METHODOLOGY AND ANALYSIS: RECIDIVISM DATA (July 12-16) ■ Pamela Lattimore, National Institute of Justice, and guest speakers

Second Session: July 26-August 20

Lectures

NONLINEAR SYSTEMS II: CHAOS, CATASTROPHIES, AND SCIENTIFIC VISUALIZATION ■ Courtney Brown, Political Science, Emory University

MATRIX ALGEBRA ■ Timothy McDaniel, School of Science, Buena Vista College

INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTING ■ Ricardo Rodriguiz, Political Science, University of Michigan

DYNAMIC AND LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS
Gregory Markus, Political Science, University of Michigan (Panel Analysis, Pooled Time Series Analysis); Mark Hayward, Sociology, Pennsylvania State University (Event History Analysis); Walter Labys, Economics, West Virginia University (Time Series Tests)

Workshops

STRUCTURAL EQUATION MODELS ■ Robert Luskin, Political Science, University of Texas

REGRESSION ANALYSIS ■ Brian Pollins, Political Science, Ohio State University

TIME SERIES ANALYSIS

James Granato, Political Science, Michigan State University

INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICS AND DATA ANALYSIS II ■ Merle Feldbaum, Political Science, University of Michigan

CATEGORICAL DATA ANALYSIS - David Cross, Psychology, Texas Christian University

"LISREL" MODELS: GENERAL STRUCTURAL EQUATIONS Douglas Baer, Sociology, Western Ontario University

MATHEMATICAL MODELS: RATIONAL CHOICE Jack Knight, Political Science, Washington University

ADVANCED ANALYSIS OF VARIANCE ■ Michael Berbaum, Institute for Social Science Research, University of Alabama

QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS OF CRIME AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

James Lynch, Law and Society, American University

GENERAL STRUCTURAL EQUATION ("LISREL") MODELS: AN INTRODUCTION (July 26–30) Kenneth Bollen, Sociology, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

GENERAL STRUCTURAL EQUATION ("LISREL") MODELS: INTERMEDIATE TOPICS (August 2–6) ■ Kenneth Bollen, Sociology, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

MANAGEMENT OF MACHINE-READABLE SOCIAL SCIENCE INFORMATION (August 9–13) ■ Charles Humphrey, University of Alberta; Diane Geraci, State University of New York, Binghamton; James Jacobs, University of California, San Diego

The Blalock Lectures on Advanced Topics in Social Research

BEYOND LINEAR MODELS: AN INTRODUCTION TO NONPARAMETRIC REGRESSION (July 12–14) ■ Werner Stuetzle, Statistics, University of Washington

DATA VISUALIZATION AND INTERACTIVE CLUSTER ANALYSIS (July 14–15) Werner Stuetzle, Statistics, University of Washington

DOING THE IMPOSSIBLE WITH STRUCTURAL EQUATION MODELS: SENSITIVITY TESTS FOR UNTESTABLE ASSUMPTIONS (July 19)

Charles Franklin, Political Science, University of Wisconsin

CHAOS: THE STRANGE NEW SCIENCE (July 20) (A video presentation produced by the Public Broadcast System [PBS] for the NOVA television show)

RESAMPLING TECHNIQUES: BOOTSTRAP METHODS FOR DATA ANALYSIS (July 26–30) Robert Stine, Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania

COMPARATIVE DEMOCRACY: A POOLED TIME SERIES ANALYSIS (July 29) Michael Lewis-Beck, Political Science, University of Iowa

GRAPHICAL DATA ANALYSIS AND PRESENTATION (August 2-6) ■ John Fox, Sociology, York University

HIERARCHICAL LINEAR MODELS: HISTORY, APPLICATIONS, AND FUTURE DIRECTIONS (August 9~13)
Stephen Raudenbush, School of Education, Michigan State University

APPENDIX D:

ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1993–1994
ICPSR Organizational Documents

Constitution

Bylaws

Memorandum of Agreement

ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1993-1994

ACCOLEDS-A COPPUL Consortium of Library Electronic Data Services: *University of Alberta Charles Humphrey University of British Columbia Hilde Colenbrander University of Calgary University of Lethbridge Sharon Neary Barbara Marshalsay Nicole Michaud-Oystryk University of Manitoba University of Northern British Columbia Darrell Bailie University of Regina Marilyn Andrews University of Saskatchewan Darlene Fichter Simon Fraser University Walter Piovesan University of Victoria Mamie Swanson Steve Aby C. Diann Weatherly University of Akron University of Alabama, Birmingham Alabama Federation *University of Alabama, Tuscaloosa Michael Berbaum Birmingham Southern College Robert Slagter Alfred University Timothy Keith American University Vivian Shayne Appalachian State University Joel Thompson University of Arizona William Dixon Arizona State University Richard Herrera University of Arkansas, Fayetteville William A. Schwab University of Arkansas, Little Rock Samuel A. Covington Arkansas State University David England Associated Colleges of the Midwest/Great Lakes Colleges Association Federation: *Lawrence University Kathy Isaacson Scott Bierman Carleton College Colorado College Edward B. Winograd Denison University William Bishop DePauw University Carl Singer Barbara Trish Grinnell College Hope College Carl Heideman Kenyon College David Harrington Macalester College Ohio Wesleyan University Wabash College Jeff Nash Robert Gitter Frank Howland College of Wooster Karen Beckwith Auburn University at Auburn James H. Gundlach Australian Consortium for Social and Political Research, Inc: Roger Jones R. Jones *Australian National University Deakin University K. Ross Flinders University D. DeBats LaTrobe University R. Powell Macquarie University M. Goot University of Melbourne B. Headey Melbourne College of Advanced Education P. Rogers S. Clegg S. Encel University of New England University of New South Wales University of Queensland J. Western Queensland Institute of Technology P. Crowe Swinbume Institute of Technology C. Robinson University of Sydney B. O'Toole University of Tasmania R. Volpato Western Australian Institute of Technology D. Charnock **Bard College** Triveni Kuchi Bates College Laura Juraska Bloomsburg University Boise State University Robert Abbot Christine Loucks Boston College Bowdoin College lames Walsh Carol O'Donnell Bowling Green State University Brandeis University Brazilian National Membership Floris Wood Susan Reynold *University of Campinas Rachel Meneguello **Brigham Young University** David B. Magleby **Brookings Institution** Sallyjune Kuka Brown University Donna Souza

Ilona Einowski

University of California, Berkeley

University of California, Davis	Jean Stratford
University of California, Irvine	Daniel C. Tsang
University of California, Los Angeles University of California, Riverside	Elizabeth Stephenson
University of California, San Diego	Carl F. Cranor
University of California, Santa Barbara	James Jacobs
University of California, Santa Cruz	Joan R. Murdoch Thomas Pettigrew
California State Universities Federation:	Donald Carder
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona	John L. Korey
California State Polytechnic University, San Luis Obispo	Richard A. Shaffer
California State University, Bakersfield	James Ross
California State University, Chico	Jon S. Ebeling
California State University, Dominguez Hills California State University, Fresno	Margaret Blue
California State University, Fullerton	Edward Nelson
California State University, Hayward	Richard T. Serpe
California State University, Humboldt	Daniel Graves ledon Emenhiser
California State University, Long Beach	Hal Hubbard
California State University, Los Angeles	Ted Anagnoson
California State University, Northridge	Gene Turner
California State University, Sacramento	Carol Barnes
California State University, San Bernardino	Elliott Barkan
Califomia State University, San Francisco Califomia State University, Sonoma	Richard Deleon
California State University, Stanislaus	Donald Dixon
San Jose State University	Lawrence Giventer Peter Haas
Calvin College ,	Ann Annis
Carnegie-Mellon University	Judith Brink
Case Western Reserve University	Nina Chou
Catholic University of America	Douglas Sloane
Central Michigan University	T. Edward Westen
University of Chicago	Michael Dawson
Chicago Academy of Science Christopher Newport University	Jon D. Miller
University of Cincinnati	Catherine Doyle Alfred J. Tuchfarber
City University of New York Federation:	Allieu J. Tuchianter
*Baruch College	Bliss B. Siman
Brooklyn College	Howard Spivak
City College	Jeffrey Rosen
Graduate School and University Center	Asher Arian
Hunter College	Nancy Larkin
John Jay College	Richard W. Lovely
Lehman College	William A. Bosworth
Queens College College of Staten Island	Andrew Beveridge
York College	Zafar Ahmad Richard Boris
Claremont Graduate School	Joel Smith
Clemson University	Carla Rathbone
Cleveland State University	Henry York
Colby College	Debrá Barbezat
Colgate University	Kevin Rask
University of Colorado, Boulder	James L. Little
University of Colorado, Denver Columbia University	Laura M. Argys
University of Connecticut	Gregory Haley Everett C. Ladd, Jr.
Consortium for International Earth Science Information Network	Everett C. Lauu, jr.
(CIESIN)	David Winfree
Cornell Federation:	David Willie
*Cornell University	Ann Gray
Hamilton College	Ralph Stenstrom
Creighton University	Audrey Larkin
Danish National Membership *Odense University	Dec No.1
Aalborg University Center	Per Nielsen
University of Aarhus	
University of Copenhagen	
Roskilde University Center	
Dartmouth College	Gayle Poinsette
Davidson College	Mary Thomberry
University of Delaware	Larry Hotchkiss
DePaul University Doshisha University (Japan)	Irina Krop
Drake University	Soichi Shinohara Arthur B. Sanders
Drew University	Paul Coen

Duke University Robert Jackson **Duquesne University** Paul Pugliese Dutch National Membership: Steinmetz Archives, SWIDOC Harry P.M. Heemskerk University of Amsterdam **Erasmus University** Free University Katholieke University University of Leiden University of Nijmegen East Carolina University Dorothy H. Clayton Eastern Michigan University Stuart Karabenik **Emory University** Elizabeth McBride European University Institute (Italy) Robert Danziger Florida Consortium for Political Research: *University of Florida Kenneth Wald University of Central Florida Phillip Pollock Anita Pritchard Florida Atlantic University Florida International University John Stack Florida State University William Berry University of Miami Lyn MacCorkle University of South Florida University of West Florida loe Floyd M. Lal Goel Fordham University James P. McCabe Francis Marion College John Baltzell Franklin and Marshall College Robert Friedrich French National Membership: Banque de Données Socio-Politique (CIDSP/BDSP, CNRS) **Bruno Cautres** University de Grenoble Furman University Kenneth D. Peterson George Mason University Greg Guagnano George Washington University Susan Wiley Georgetown University John Bruce Georgia Southern University Howard M. Kaplan Georgia State University David L. Sjoquist German National Membership *Zentralarchiv für empirische Sozialforschung, Universität zu Köln Harald Rohlinger Institut für politische Wissenschaft der Christian-Albrechts Universität Institut für Sozialwissenschaften an der Universität Mannheim Sozialwissenschaftliches Forschungsinstitut der Konrad-Adenauer-Stiftung Gettysburg College Dean Duncan University of Guelph Bo Wandschneider University of Hartford Hartwick College John A. Stewart Robert E. Danford Harvard University Joshua Blatt University of Hawaii Heather Hammer University of Hong Kong Robert T.Y. Chung Hong Kong University of Science and Technology Grant A. Taylor University of Houston Mark Franklin Howard University Johnnie Daniel Hungarian National Membership: *Hungarian Academy of Sciences University of Illinois, Chicago Laszlo Fustos Jeong-Hwa Lee University of Illinois, Urbana Lawrence E. Jones Illinois State University Vanehe M. Schwartz Indiana University Gerald C. Wright, Jr. Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica (Republic of China) Jia-You Sheu Iowa State University Eric Plutzer Israeli National Membership: The Hebrew University Michal Peleg Bar-Ilan University Ben-Gurion University Haifa University The Technion Tel-Aviv University James Madison University Robert Brookshire Johns Hopkins University Richard Katz University of Kansas Roger T. Anderson

James L. Franke

Láura M. Bartolo

Kyoko Seki

Kansas State University

Keio University (Japan)

Kent State University

University of Kentucky Kobe University (Japan) Kyoto University of Foreign Studies (Japan) Lafayette College Lehigh University Library of Congress Louisiana State University University of Louisville Loyola University, Chicago Loyola College in Maryland Loyola University of New Orleans Loyola Marymount University McGill University McMaster University Marquette University University of Maryland, Baltimore County University of Maryland, College Park Massachusetts Federation: *University of Massachusetts, Amherst Amherst College Smith College Massachusetts Institute of Technology University of Memphis Merrimack College Miami University University of Michigan Michigan State University Middlebury College Milken Institute for Job and Capital Formation University of Minnesota University of Minnesota, Morris Minnesota State University Federation: *Mankato State University Bemidji State University Metropolitan State University Moorhead State University Saint Cloud State University Southwest State University Winona State University University of Mississippi Mississippi State University University of Missouri, Columbia University of Missouri, St. Louis University of Montreal Morehouse College Nassau Community College National Chengchi University (Republic of China) University of Nebraska University of Nevada, Las Vegas University of Nevada, Reno University of New Hampshire University of New Mexico New Mexico State University University of New Orleans New School for Social Research New York University University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill University of North Carolina, Charlotte University of North Carolina, Greensboro University of North Texas North Carolina Central University North Carolina State University Northeastern University Northern Arizona University Northern Illinois University Northwestern University Norwegian National Membership: *Norwegian Social Science Data Services Bergen University University of Oslo University of Notre Dame Oberlin College Occidental College

Ohio State University

Chi Huang Katurou Kanzaki Ichiro Akano **Donald Chambers** Diane T. Hyland Royce Crocker Forrest Deseran Philip Sager John Frendreis Mark F. Peyrot Herb Nickles Paula Nielson Susan Czamocki H.J. Jacek Duane Swank John Suess Eric M. Uslaner

Douglas L. Anderton Betty Steele Howard Gold Mallory Stark T. David Mason Eugene R. DeClercq Clyde Brown Nancy Burns Lawrence Kestenbaum Jeffrey Rehbach Karin Petersen Hsiao William Flanigan Daniel Stengel

Donald Olson Fred Hartman Cheryl Anderson Les Bakke Randy Kolb Duane Herrick Dan Pecarina Royce Kurtz David Breaux Gwendolyn Gray Calvin Mouw Arlette Joffee Nicodeme Anne C. Baird William Feigelman Chen Yih-Yan Elizabeth Theiss-Morse Dennis L. Soden Duncan M. Aldrich Patrick Yott Keiko Nakao Melvin Marlo Brown John K. Wildgen Sheri Prupis Robert Yaffee John Shelton Reed Dawn Hubbs Charles Prysby Valerie J. Martinez Robert D. Montgomery Lisa T Abbott Jack McDevitt James M. Armour Cynthia Nelson Ann landa

Bjorn Henrichsen

Rodney F. Ganey Luis Fernandez Manuel Pastor Herb Weisberg

Ohio University University of Oklahoma Oklahoma State University Old Dominion University University of Oregon Oregon State University Pace University Pennsylvania State University People's University of China Philadelphia Federation: *University of Pennsylvania Bryn Mawr College La Salle University Villanova University West Chester University University of Pittsburgh Polish National Membership Portland State University Princeton University University of Puget Sound Purdue University Rand Corporation Reed College University of Rhode Island Rice University University of Richmond Robert Wood Johnson Foundation University of Rochester Rutgers University Saint Anselm College Salisbury State University Sam Houston State University San Diego State University Sangamon State University Santa Clara University Social Weather Stations, Inc. (Philippines) Sonoma State University University of South Alabama University of South Carolina Southeastern Louisiana University University of Southern California Southern Illinois University, Carbondale Southern Illinois University, Edwardsville Southern University, Baton Rouge Southwestern University Spelman College Stanford University State University of New York, Albany State University of New York, Binghamton State University of New York, Buffalo State University of New York, College at Buffalo State University of New York, College at New Paltz State University of New York, Stony Brook Swarthmore College Swedish National Membership: *Swedish Social Science Data Service Linkoping University Göteborg University Lund University Stockholm University **Umea University** Uppsala University Swiss National Membership: Graduate Institute for International Studies University of Geneva University of Zurich Syracuse University **Taylor University** Temple University University of Tennessee, Knoxville University of Texas, Arlington University of Texas, Austin University of Texas, Dallas

University of Texas, Medical Branch, Galveston

Carol Blum
David R. Morgan
Michael Hirlinger
Elaine Hall
Cathlene Leue
Patrick Grace
Lawrence A. Kittinger
Christine Avery
Qiang Li

Janusz Szyrmer David Karen Stephen A. Longo Matt Kerbel Frauke Schnell Philip Sidel Miroslaw Kofta David A. Smeltzer Judith S. Rowe Lori Ricigliano James McCann Mary Lukanuski John Pock Carole Miller John Alford Daniel Palazzolo Diane Barker Richard G. Niemi Scott Bilder Ronald Dumont Linda Zeigler Dennis Longmire Douglas Coe Edward Wass Marilyn Fernandez Mahar Mangahas Donald Dixon Marc Matre Jacqueline Cunningham Kurt Corbello George Gonzalez Vincent A. Lacey John V. Farrell Huey L. Perry Deborah J. Kramer Iris Aikens-Singleton Richard Fitchen Eleanor Gossen Diane Geraci Donald Henning Carl B. Backman William W. Philliber Tom Phelan Gudmund Iverson

Lennart Brantgarde

Urs Luterbacher
Pierre Allan
Andree Helminger
George Abbott
Philip Loy
Scott R. Snyder
Jane Row
Michael Moore
Brian E. Roberts
Kurt J. Beron
Todd Miller

ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

University of Texas, San Antonio Texas A & M University Texas Tech University University of Toledo University of Toronto **Tufts University** Tulane University Union College United Kingdom National Membership: *E.S.R.C. Archives, Essex United States Commission on Civil Rights Ursinus College University of Utah Utah State University Vanderbilt University Vassar College University of Vermont Virginia Commonwealth University Virginia Commonwealth Office Virginia Federation: *University of Virginia College of William and Mary Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Wake Forest University University of Washington Washington and Lee University Washington State of, Office of Financial Management
Washington University, St. Louis
Washington State University
Wayne State University Wellesley College Wesleyan University West Virginia University Western Kentucky University Western Michigan University University of Western Ontario Western Washington University Wheaton College Wichita State University Williams College University of Windsor University of Wisconsin, Eau Claire University of Wisconsin, Madison University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee Wittenberg University University of Wyoming Yale Federation:

*Yale University

Trinity College

Richard Harris Brad Epps Theresa Trost James B. Weaver, Jr. Laine Ruus Durwood Marshall J. Timmons Roberts Theresa Marchant-Shapiro

Eric Tanenbaum Harriet Duleep Bernard Lentz John G. Francis Peter F. Galderisi Anne Reuland Shirley Maul Kevin Wiberg Scott Keeter

Keeok Park Ronald Rapoport Dave Beagle Catherine Harris Fred Nick Mark Rush Sharon Estee William Olbrich Siegfried H. Vogt Kurt Metzger Julie Drucker Richard Boyd John Kilwein J.J. Sloan Harley Behm Douglas G. Link Carl Simpson Lyman Kellstedt Brian W. Williams David A. Booth Kai Hildebrandt Rick Richmond Laura Guy Thomas Holbrook John R. Baker Gary D. Hampe

JoAnn Dionne Noreen Channels

*Contact institution

Constitution Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Preamble

The Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research was founded at the University of Michigan in 1962 and is currently governed under a Memorandum of Organization as a partnership between member institutions and the Center for Political Studies of the Institute for Social Research. This Constitution and the accompanying Bylaws establish the organizational identity for ICPSR. The Bylaws authorize ICPSR to affiliate for specific purposes with a host institution.

Article I. Name

This organization will be called the Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research (ICPSR).

Article II. Purposes

The purposes of the ICPSR are to promote and facilitate research and instruction in the social sciences and related areas, by acquiring, developing, archiving, and disseminating data and documentation for instruction and research; conducting related instructional programs; conducting such other activities as may be authorized in accord with the Bylaws; and obtaining the resources necessary to accomplish these purposes.

Article III. Membership

The eligible membership of ICPSR includes: (1) institutions of higher education, units within institutions of higher education, and federations of educational institutions; and (2) such institutions and organizations as may subsequently be designated in accord with the Bylaws. Categories of membership will be designated in the Bylaws. Services will be provided to members and others in accord with the Bylaws.

Article IV. Governance

Each member will be represented by an Official Representative chosen by the member. Representation arrangements for federations and national memberships will be set forth in the Bylaws. The membership through the Official Representatives will elect a Council to serve as the Executive Committee of the membership, with authority to act on behalf of the member institutions, employ personnel, enter into contracts, and carry out activities to execute the purposes specified in Article II. The composition, election, and organization of the Council will be set forth in the Bylaws.

Article V. Voting Rights

Each member in good standing, as specified in the Bylaws, will have one vote, to be cast by the Official Representative designated by the member.

Article VI. Meetings

The Council will hold regular and special meetings as provided in the Bylaws, but no less than once a year. The Official Representatives will meet at regular intervals as provided in the Bylaws.

Article VII. Dues

The Council will establish annual membership dues, which may vary according to category of membership and be separately negotiated for each federation and national membership. Members must be notified one year in advance of an increase in dues.

Article VIII. Fiscal Policies

Membership dues are to be used exclusively to finance activities and services on behalf of member institutions in accord with the purposes specified in Article II. Under the direction and with the approval of the Council, and congruent with its purposes, ICPSR may charge fees and seek and expend funds in addition to membership dues.

Article IX. Bylaws

ICPSR may adopt Bylaws, consistent with this Constitution, for the conduct of its affairs. Bylaws may be enacted, amended, or repealed: (1) by a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the Council eligible to vote, at a meeting of the Council or in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 30 days; or (2) by a majority vote of the Official Representatives eligible to vote, in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 90 days.

Article X. Amendments

Proposals to amend the Constitution may be initiated by majority vote of the Council or by a petition presented to the Council signed by Official Representatives of at least 25 member institutions. Amendments may be adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of the Official Representatives eligible to vote, in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 90 days.

Article XI. Ratification

This Constitution becomes effective when adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the Council eligible to vote.

Bylaws Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Preamble

These Bylaws are authorized by the Constitution of the ICPSR. The terms of the Preamble to the Constitution are applicable.

Article I. Membership

1. Conditions of Membership

A. Members will be assigned to categories based upon the member's size, program, and location. If the membership is formally held by a department or other unit, the characteristics of the entire university or organization will be considered in assigning a membership category. Guidelines for membership categories are:

Category A: Educational institutions with doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas.

Category B: Undergraduate institutions without doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas and with enrollments of 2,500 or more students.

Category S: Colleges without doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas and with enrollments of fewer than 2,500 students.

Category C: Institutions in developing countries.

Categories F and N: Federated and national memberships consist of a number of institutions in categories A, B, C, and S that have joined together around a common link to the ICPSR. The common link is responsible for distributing data and documentation from the ICPSR to the other members. Dues are assessed based on the actual configuration of memberships.

- **B.** Not-for-profit research organizations having a clearly defined educational mission may, with approval of the Council, become members of ICPSR and be assigned to a membership category.
- C. Internal arrangements bearing upon the sources of financial support for the membership are the responsibility of the member. Each member is responsible for determining the eligibility of its faculty, staff, and students for participation in ICPSR activities.
- **D.** Associate Membership may be requested by other not-for-profit organizations having a clearly defined educational mission. Provision of services and appropriate dues will be set by Council. Associate membership does not carry voting privileges.
- E. Membership should be sought only with the expectation that benefits accrue with continuing participation. Short-term memberships are discouraged. Officials of member institutions agree to attempt to provide the necessary dues and local support on a continuing basis.
- F. Annual membership dues shall be paid by July 1 or at the beginning of such alternative annual membership cycle as may be agreed upon by individual members and ICPSR. Budgetary inability to meet a single year's membership dues will not necessitate termination of membership provided that the member is willing to make up the deficit across an agreed upon period not to exceed five years.
- **G.** A member may withdraw from membership after one year's written notice mailed to the Executive Director. Except under special circumstances, the ICPSR will require that use of all materials provided by ICPSR, including data and documentation, be discontinued upon termination of membership.
- H. A member may rejoin the ICPSR after dropping its membership. Payment of a "re-entry" fee of 50 percent of the annual dues in effect at the time of rejoining will normally be required. This fee is in addition to membership dues from the date of rejoining.

2. Benefits and Obligations of Membership

- **A.** The ICPSR staff will endeavor to provide equitable services to each member. Given the variety of functions, the limitations on time and space in the performance of some activities, and the variable pace of research activities at member institutions, the goal shall be equality in service over a period of years.
- **B.** Members will not distribute data or other materials supplied by ICPSR to other members, organizations, or individuals at other institutions, without the written agreement of ICPSR.
- C. Member institutions agree that data and other materials provided by ICPSR are to be used solely for statistical analysis and reporting of aggregated information, and not for investigation of specific individuals or organizations, except when identification is authorized in writing by ICPSR. Each member institution gives assurance that such uses of statistical data will conform to widely-accepted standards of practice and legal restrictions that are intended to protect the confidentiality of research subjects.
- **D.** Books, articles, conference papers, theses, dissertations, and other publications or reports that employ data or other resources provided by ICPSR should cite both original data collectors and ICPSR as the source, in accord with recommended citation procedures for computer files in the social sciences.
- E. Individuals who collect data or develop other research or instructional resources of general interest to the social science community are invited to make such resources available to the membership by offering them for deposit with ICPSR.
- **F.** Member institutions, through their Official Representatives, have the right to express concerns and complaints about services to the Executive Director, and if a matter is not satisfactorily resolved to file a grievance with Council. Council will investigate grievances and take such action as may be appropriate.

3. Services for Nonmembers

- A. ICPSR data and documentation will be provided to individuals who are not affiliated with a member institution. Such individuals requesting data for their research or instructional use will sign a loan agreement, and submit payment for charges assessed, before data are provided. ICPSR data and documentation may be provided to nonmember organizations on a basis negotiated by the organization and the Executive Director and approved by Council. Resources made available by ICPSR to nonmembers shall not be redistributed or sold to other individuals or organizations without the written agreement of ICPSR.
- **B.** Participation in ICPSR training functions or special research conferences supported solely by membership dues will be limited to students, faculty, and staff from member institutions, unless exceptions are authorized by Council or the Executive Director.

Article II. Official Representatives

Each member, including each national membership and each participant in a federation, will be represented by an Official Representative chosen by the member. The Official Representative serves as the liaison between ICPSR and the member and represents the member at meetings of Official Representatives. A member may designate a second Official Representative to aid in the provision of services to the member or membership and to attend meetings of Official Representatives. Special representation arrangements for a national membership or federation may be negotiated by ICPSR Senior Staff and approved by the Council.

Article III. Council

1. Membership

The Council of the ICPSR consists of twelve persons elected by the membership. Six new Council members will be elected every two years to serve four-year terms. The Council will include the past Council Chairperson and the Associate Directors as ex-officio non-voting members.

2. Duties

- A. The Council is the Executive Committee of the membership and the governing body of the ICPSR. The Council is authorized to act on behalf of the ICPSR. The Council participates in the definition of organizational objectives and in the determination of policies to achieve those objectives. It is authorized to affiliate with other organizations for the purpose of developing organizational and fiscal arrangements of benefit to the ICPSR and its members. Actions taken on behalf of the ICPSR by ICPSR staff or staff of organizations with which the ICPSR is affiliated are subject to Council review.
- **B.** The Council will establish policies and procedures for approving activities to be carried out on behalf of the ICPSR, such as seeking grants, contracts, and other outside financial support, collaborating or participating in committees and studies, and undertaking a major data collection.
- C. The Council will establish policies regulating the participation of individuals in training programs and other activities for which limited resources preclude the simultaneous participation of all who might be interested.
- D. The Council will receive an annual report from the Executive Director and Senior Staff. The report will review and project ICPSR activities, revenues, and expenditures for the past year, current year, and coming year. The Council will transmit a summary of this report along with any recommendations it may have to the Official Representatives. The Council may request, and is entitled to receive, any additional information it deems useful concerning the operations and fiscal affairs of the ICPSR.

3. Meetings

The Council will normally hold three regular meetings each year. A special meeting of the Council may be called by the Chairperson, the Executive Director, six members of the Council, or other persons as agreed to by the Council. Seven members of the Council will constitute a quorum for Council action. The Executive Director, Senior Staff of ICPSR, a representative of the host organization with which the ICPSR has affiliated, and invited guests may attend open sessions of Council meetings. The Council may hold closed or executive sessions for specific purposes.

Article IV. Officers of the Council

1. Chairperson

- **A.** The Chairperson of the Council will be elected by the membership (see Article VII). The Chairperson will normally be nominated from among the Council members who will be serving the third year of their term and will serve a two-year term as Chairperson.
- **B.** The Chairperson is responsible for signing documents on behalf of the Council. The Chairperson will act as a liaison between the Executive Director and the Council and as a liaison between the Director of the host organization with which ICPSR is affiliated and the Council. The Chairperson will normally chair meetings of Official Representatives.
- C. The Council may appoint an acting Chairperson to serve when the Chairperson is not available to execute duties of the Chair.

2. Other Officers

The Council may designate and appoint other officers to carry out duties of the Council.

Article V. Past Chairperson of the Council

The immediate past Chairperson of the Council will serve as an ex-officio member of the Council for a period of two years.

Article VI. Associate Directors

The Executive Director, with the advice and consent of the Council, may appoint Associate Directors for specified terms. Associate Directors will serve as ex-officio members of the Council and in such other capacities as the Council designates.

Article VII. Elections

1. Nomination

- **A.** The Nominating Committee for elections to the Council will be composed of the Council Chairperson serving as chair of the Committee, the other Council members serving in the final half of their terms, and at least two individuals not currently members of the Council designated by the Council Chairperson.
- **B.** The Chairperson, acting on behalf of the Committee, will solicit nominations from Council members, Official Representatives, the ICPSR Executive Director and Senior Staff, Associate Directors, and the responsible executive official of the host institution. Nominees must be from member institutions. The Executive Director will gather and present to the nominating committee information on potential candidates. The Nominating Committee will present to the Official Representatives the names of a proposed Chairperson (see Article IV, Section 1) and nominees to the Council, with adequate time to allow additional nominations by Official Representatives in accord with stated procedures determined by the Council.

2. Election

- A. Ballots will be mailed to those Official Representatives eligible to vote. Election to each position will be by majority vote among votes properly cast for that position.
- **B.** The Council, by two-thirds vote of its members, may remove a member from Council for cause, such as persistent non-performance of duties.
- **C.** Vacancies that occur on the Council or in the office of the Council Chairperson between elections will be filled through appointment by the Council.

3. Terms of Office

The newly elected Council members and the newly elected Council Chairperson will assume office at the first regular meeting following the election and will serve until the beginning of the first regular meeting after their successors have been elected.

Article VIII. Committees

The Council has the authority to create standing committees. The Chairperson, in consultation with the Council, will make appointments to standing committees. A standing committee will normally include at least one member of the Council. The Chairperson may establish and make appointments to ad hoc committees.

Article IX. Executive Director and Senior Staff

1. Positions

The chief executive officer of the ICPSR is the Executive Director. The ICPSR staff will consist of such personnel as are necessary for ICPSR to perform the activities required to fulfill its constitutionally defined purposes and meet its obligations to its membership and Council. The Executive Director may designate, with consent of Council, selected managerial, supervisory, and professional personnel as ICPSR Senior Staff. The Executive Director, and the Senior Staff through the Executive Director, are responsible to the Council for the conduct of ICPSR affairs and to the host institution for adherence to its rules and regulations.

2. Evaluation

The Chairperson and other Council members designated by the Council are authorized to participate, along with responsible officials of the host institution, in the evaluation of job performance and recommendations for merit raises and promotion of the Executive Director and the Senior Staff. The Executive Director and the Senior Staff have the right to file job and other grievances with the Council. The Council will receive and investigate such grievances and take such action as may be appropriate within its authority. These provisions do not preclude or preempt use by the Executive Director and Senior Staff of normal grievance procedures of the host institution. Upon request, the Council may participate on behalf of the Executive Director or Senior Staff in grievance proceedings of the host institution in accord with the regulations of the host institution.

3. Access to Council

The Executive Director and Senior Staff, individually and collectively, have the right to bring issues and concerns to the Council Chairperson, the chairperson of a Council committee, or an individual member of Council. If formal Council response or action is requested or required, the matter will be communicated in writing to the Chairperson. The Council may establish investigative and grievance procedures to protect individual rights and assure fair and prompt response.

Article X. Institutional Affiliations

The ICPSR Council is authorized to adopt one or more Memoranda of Agreement that affiliate the ICPSR with the University of Michigan Center for Political Studies or other host institutions. A Memorandum of Agreement may designate the host institution to serve as fiscal agent for the ICPSR. All affiliation agreements shall be reviewed by the Council at regular intervals. An affiliation with a host institution may be terminated by the Council in accord with provisions of an operative Memorandum of Agreement.

Memorandum of Agreement

Definitions:

"ICPSR" means the Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research.

"CPS" means the Center for Political Studies.

"ISR" means the Institute for Social Research.

"University" means the University of Michigan.

"Director" means the Director of CPS.

"Chairperson" means the Chairperson of the ICPSR Council.

"Executive Director" means the Executive Director of ICPSR.

Preamble

ICPSR and CPS enter into an agreement of affiliation to assist ICPSR to provide the resources and facilities and perform the activities required to fulfill its constitutionally defined purposes and meet its obligations to its membership and elected Council. This affiliation allows ICPSR to function within CPS, in accord with the terms of this Memorandum and consistent with the Constitution and Bylaws of ICPSR, the Bylaws of CPS, and the regulations of ISR and the University.

Section I. ICPSR Personnel

1. The Executive Director

- **A. Appointment.** The Executive Director, as an employee of the University of Michigan, will be appointed by the Director, with the endorsement of the Chairperson and the advice and consent of the ICPSR Council, for a fixed term not to exceed five years. Reappointment for additional terms is possible.
- **B. Programmatic Review.** Prior to the conclusion of an incumbent Executive Director's term of office, or upon the occurrence of a vacancy in the office, a Review Committee will normally be established, appointed jointly by the Chairperson and the Director. The Review Committee will include at least one member of the primary research staff of CPS. The Review Committee will be asked to provide an assessment of ICPSR's current fiscal and administrative status, operations, and performance in carrying out its purposes as set forth in the Constitution, and to offer advice and recommendations concerning its future.
- C. Nomination Committee. After the programmatic review has been completed, the Director, in consultation and agreement with the Chairperson, will appoint a Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will include a member of the primary research staff of CPS, a member of the ICPSR Council, and a member of the ICPSR Senior Staff, and may include additional members.

To assess the leadership needs of ICPSR, the Nomination Committee will consider the report of the Review Committee and the views of ICPSR Council, ICPSR Senior Staff, and the primary research staff of CPS. If the incumbent Executive Director is willing to serve an additional term, and the Nomination Committee considers that he or she would be an effective leader for the future, the Committee may recommend reappointment. If reappointment of the incumbent Executive Director is not possible, or if the Committee believes it beneficial to consider other candidates, the Committee will prepare a statement of qualifications for the position and conduct a search for candidates in accordance with University affirmative action procedures and personnel regulations. The Nomination Committee will ask the ICPSR Council, ICPSR Senior Staff, primary research staff of CPS, and members of the social science community to suggest individuals for the position.

The Nomination Committee will report to the Director and the Chairperson. The report will include the names of the candidates who were considered, the criteria that were utilized in selecting the nominees, and the names of one or more nominees recommended for appointment.

D. Appointment Process. The Director and the Chairperson will discuss the report of the Nomination Committee with the ICPSR Council, Executive Director, and Senior Staff, the primary research staff of CPS, the Director of ISR, the Directors of other Centers within ISR, and appropriate university and departmental persons at the University. An offer of appointment requires the consent of the ICPSR Council. If the Director and the ICPSR Council have difficulty reaching agreement on the choice of candidate or terms of appointment, the good offices of the Director of ISR will

be enlisted to seek resolution. The offer of appointment will be made by the Director, with the endorsement of the Chairperson.

- **E. Performance Review and Remuneration.** A review of the job performance of the Executive Director in meeting the missions and goals of the ICPSR will be carried out by the Director annually or at the intervals and times provided for employees in similar positions at the University. The Director will consult with the Chairperson about the nature of the performance review, and they will agree upon the performance evaluation and proposed merit increments in salary and other changes in remuneration. In case of disagreement, the Director of ISR will be asked to mediate and, if necessary, make a decision. If the Executive Director's University appointment is split among ICPSR and other units, the Chairperson will be informed about the evaluations and proposed merit increments of the other units and will be consulted about the University's aggregate remuneration for the Executive Director.
- **F. Interim Appointment.** If the position of Executive Director becomes vacant, the Director, with the advice and consent of the ICPSR Council, may appoint an Interim Executive Director. An interim appointment will be for no more than one year, but such appointments may be extended for up to one additional year with the advice and consent of the ICPSR Council.

2. ICPSR Staff

- **A. Appointment.** ICPSR staff are formally appointed as members and employees of CPS. Appointments to the staff of ICPSR are made by the Executive Director, in conformity with normal employment regulations of CPS, ISR, and the University. Appointments are subject to the processes of review and approval by CPS that are normal for the type of appointment.
- **B.** Performance Evaluation and Remuneration. Evaluation and remuneration of ICPSR staff will be based upon the job performance of these employees in meeting the missions and goals of the ICPSR. For an individual with a joint appointment outside ICPSR, performance in meeting ICPSR responsibilities and performance in meeting responsibilities with one or more other appointments will be reviewed separately and independently. The combined results of these reviews will provide the basis for determining an aggregate performance evaluation and remuneration.

Performance reviews of the Senior Staff of ICPSR will be carried out by the Executive Director at the intervals and times provided for employees in accordance with the University of Michigan's Standard Practice Guide. The Executive Director will make available to the Director the material used for the performance reviews and will make recommendations for merit increments in salary. These will be acted upon, consistent with University guidelines, by the Director. In cases of irreconcilable differences between the Executive Director and the Director concerning staff evaluations or merit increments, the Chairperson will be consulted before the Director makes a final determination.

Performance reviews of other ICPSR staff will be carried out at the intervals and times provided for employees in accordance with the University of Michigan's Standard Practice Guide. Recommendations on performance evaluations and merit salary increments will be subject to normal procedural review by CPS.

The Executive Director and the Senior Staff have the right to file job and other grievances with the Council. The Council will receive and investigate such grievances and take such action as may be appropriate within its authority, but in no case shall such action supersede the host institution's responsibility for and authority over its employees.

Section II. Participation in CPS Governance

1. The Executive Director

The Executive Director will serve on the CPS Advisory Committee to the Director.

2. Senior Staff

Members of the Senior Staff of ICPSR may vote for and serve as the representative of professional and administrative staff persons on the CPS Advisory Committee to the Director.

Section III. Authority of the Executive Director and Senior Staff

The Executive Director and ICPSR senior staff are authorized to act on behalf of CPS and the ICPSR Council in the conduct of ICPSR activities, subject to normal regulations of CPS, ISR, and the University. Such actions will be subject to review and approval by appropriate governing mechanisms of the ICPSR Council and CPS. These governing mechanisms will be kept fully informed, with the greatest practicable timeliness, with respect to ICPSR activities.

Section IV. Fiscal Relationship

1. Fiscal Agent

CPS, acting under the authority of the Regents of the University, will serve as the fiscal agent of the ICPSR. CPS will provide administrative services necessary for the management of funds from membership dues, external grants and contracts, and other sources of income.

2. Membership Dues

Membership dues will be handled, within the fiscal regulations of the University, as expendable restricted funds that may be invested in interest-bearing accounts. The modalities for investing ICPSR funds will be determined by the appropriate administrative and fiscal officers in accordance with University investment standards with the advice of the Executive Director, the Chairperson or a Council member designated by the Chairperson and the Director.

3. Indirect Costs and Assessments

Indirect costs on membership dues will be assessed at a rate of 15 percent. Indirect costs on all other income shall be assessed according to normal CPS, ISR, and University procedures. CPS shall not assess any charges on ICPSR accounts other than those assessed on CPS programs generally.

4. Open Records

The Director will provide the ICPSR Council with an annual CPS financial statement, including past and proposed expenditures, and such related financial information as is appropriate and necessary for Council to meet its responsibilities. The Chairperson, or a Council member designated by the Chairperson, will be granted full access to CPS financial statements. The Executive Director will have full access to all CPS and ISR financial statements.

5. Discretionary Funds

ICPSR shall have access to CPS discretionary funds under the normal CPS procedures governing the use of these funds. As a member of the Advisory Committee to the Director, the Executive Director will be informed of and participate in decisions relating to the use of CPS discretionary funds.

6. Fiscal Equity

As an organizational and fiscal subunit of CPS and ISR, ICPSR shares the fiscal burdens and privileges of these bodies. CPS and ISR are committed to insuring that ICPSR shares the burdens and benefits from the privileges in a proportionate and equitable manner. Over time, ICPSR shall receive benefits commensurate with its fiscal contributions and comparable to those received by other components of CPS.

Section V. Responsibilities of CPS and ISR

1. Administrative Services

CPS will provide administrative services necessary for the management of ICPSR funds and the procedural oversight of ICPSR activities. Separate accounts will be maintained by CPS for the ICPSR Operating Budget, supported by annual membership dues and other sources, and for each grant or contract received by the ICPSR. ICPSR budgets and accounts will be subject to normal CPS administrative and supervisory requirements and to auditing procedures required by the University.

2. Space and Other Resources

CPS will facilitate the activities of ICPSR, within the limits of available space, services, and resources, in an equitable manner with respect to other activities and subunits of CPS.

3. Attendance at ICPSR Meetings

The Director or a person designated by the Director is expected to attend the open sessions of regular meetings of the ICPSR Council and meetings of the Official Representatives of member institutions. The CPS representative will not be a voting member at such meetings.

4. ISR

The ICPSR staff may use ISR facilities and resources and call upon the various units of ISR for assistance in the same manner as may Programs of CPS.

5. Resolution of Disagreements

A disagreement between ICPSR and CPS or other parties about the terms or procedures of this agreement, or about related issues, may be referred to the Chairperson for discussion. If the matter is not satisfactorily resolved, any party may request mediation by the Director of ISR.

Section VI. Amendment

The terms of this agreement may be amended by concurring majority votes of the ICPSR Council and the Program Directors of CPS. This agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement, or upon one year's notice by either party.